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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TREEREREERBTRR DA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Group Results

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Oriental
Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”), | hereby present the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2016 (the “Year”).

Given the slowdown of economic growth in China and
the overall slackening landscapes in luxury sector, the
Group’s turnover for the Year slightly decreased by 2.5% to
HK$3,032 million (2015: HK$3,109 million). Yet, gross profit
declined by 6.4% to HK$486 million (2015: HK$519 million)
whilst gross profit margin dropped to 16.0% from 16.7%
last year. Net loss attributable to owners of the Company
was HK$16 million, (2015: Net profit of HK$5 million). The
significant decline in both the Group’s gross profit and net
loss incurred was mainly attributable to: (1) the slowdown
of demand in the high-end consumer goods market both in
Hong Kong and Mainland China; and (2) keen competition
and high operating cost.

Despite such unfavourable business environment, the
Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend of 0.25
HK cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2016
(2015: 0.25 HK cents) in appreciation of shareholders’
ongoing support. Dividend payout for the Year of 2015 was
approximately 95%.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Business Review

As at 31 March 2016, the Group operates 80 retail and
wholesale points (including associate retail stores) in the
Greater China region. Breakdown by geographic region is as
follows:

Hong Kong &
Macau SRS
China =]
Taiwan =
Total #BET

The China’s economy has undergone structural reform and
a softened economic growth has been observed in the past
two years. According to the National Bureau of Statistics
of China, the 2015 gross domestic product (“GDP”) was
expanding at a rate of 6.9% and was the weakest since
1990, failing to meet the 7% growth target set in the
“Twelfth Five-Year Plan” and even slowed to 6.7% in the
first quarter of 2016. Apart from being hampered by the
bleak economic landscape, outbound Chinese tourists
nowadays also altered their destination preferences due to
the relaxation of visa policies in foreign countries and the
depreciation of relative currency. The favourable exchange
rates have encouraged Chinese tourists to purchase
luxury goods abroad, such as Japan and other European
countries. Meanwhile, the increasing number of social
movements and the intensifying tension between Hong Kong
and Mainland China have deterred Chinese tourists from
visiting Hong Kong, thus further upsetting the luxury retail
market. Despite the difficult times ahead, Oriental Watch, as
a traditional luxury watches company with extensive foothold
in Greater China, will proactively implement stringent cost
and inventory control strategies, as well as improve store
efficiency to enhance our competitiveness and maintain
stable financial position in the coming year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEREREEEARRDM

Aside from the sluggish business environment, high rental
cost is another major challenge to be tackled for the
Group. During the Year, the Group’s aggregate rental
cost (excluding related property management fees) slightly
increased by 1.3% to HK$227 million, accounting for 42.1%
of the Group’s overall operating expenses. Since 2014,
minimising rental cost and optimising store efficiency have
been the priority of the Group. We have been internally
assessing the performance of all retails stores on a regular
basis and closed down high-rent yet non-performing stores
to achieve better resources allocation. Moreover, the pace
of rental increase has been slowed down due to the sluggish
market situation and the Group views it as a positive sign to
negotiate better rental rate in the upcoming lease renewal.
We believe the above measures can enhance our average
store profitability in the long run and alleviate the heavy
financial burden incurred by the high rental cost.

On the other hand, to ensure healthy financial position and
cash flow level, the Group has employed various inventory
management policies, such as monitoring inventory level
of high-ticket products and purchasing stocks only when
existing inventory depletes to a pre-agreed level. The
Group’s inventory level has been successfully lowered with
our prudent replenishment policy and the continuous effort
from all front-line staff. As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s
overall inventory level amounted to HK$1,570 million,
decreasing by 12.0% from HK$ 1,784 million. In the coming
year, the Group will strive to maintain a steady inventory
level for a better cash position and a sustainable business
development in the future.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TREGEREERNRRDA

According to Federation of the Swiss Watch Industry
FH, China and Hong Kong’s overall Swiss watch exports
value in April 2016 recorded a significant year-on-year
decline of 36.0% and 17.0% respectively. It is the fifteenth
consecutive month for watch exports to Hong Kong to
falter, implying that the business environment for the retalil
market, especially for luxury watches sector, will continue
to be harsh. Looking ahead, the conservative consumption
pattern of local customers is likely to persist under the
weak macroeconomic condition, together with the shift in
Chinese tourists’ destination will inevitably affect the retail
watch industry. Yet, the Group will take a prudent stance
in negotiating for reasonable rent in the coming year, at
the same time, cautiously monitor cost and inventory
level to maximise overall profitability. This year marks the
Group’s 55th anniversary and as a luxury watch retailer
with extensive experience in the industry, Oriental Watch
will stand firm to overcome the adversity ahead. With
shareholders’ interests as our first priority, the Group will
continue to strive to improve, advance and excel, so as to
achieve stability and sustainability in our business.

On behalf of the Group, we would like to thank our
customers, suppliers, staff and shareholders for their
contribution, loyalty and continued support.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and financial resources

At 31 March 2016, the Group’s total equity reached
HK$2,158 million, compared with HK$2,212 million as
at 31 March, 2015. The Group had net current assets
of HK$1,783 million, including bank and cash balances
of HK$404 million as at 31 March, 2016 compared
with balances of HK$1,892 million and HK$344 million
respectively as at 31 March, 2015. At 31 March, 2016, bank
loans of HK$217 million (31 March, 2015: HK$338 million).
At 31 March, 2016, the gearing ratio (defined as total bank
borrowing on total equity) was 0.10 (31 March, 2015: 0.15).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEREREEEARRDM

Management considers that financial position of the Group
is healthy with adequate funds and unused banking facilities.
The Group’s sales and purchase transactions are primarily
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
Group did not face significant risk from exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group’s sales and purchase transactions are primarily
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
Group did not face significant risk from exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31st March, 2016, our Group employed approximately
700 employees all over HK, Macau, China and Taiwan, of
which approximately 63% were located in Mainland China.
The total manpower is lower than previous year.

The Group’s compensation package, includes basic salary,
commission, annual bonus, medical insurance, and other
common benefits. It is structured by reference to the
marketplace and individual merits, and is reviewed on an
annual basis based on the Group’s policy’s performance
system and objective specification performance appraisal.

We believe every customer does have high expectations on
the services they obtained while shopping for luxury goods.
Thus, we must always try to provide services beyond their
expectations. As such, significant resources have been
allocated to the Staff Training and Development. Since
January, 2009, we have commissioned an independent
consulting firm to conduct a continuous “Mystery Shoppers
Programme (MSP)”. This programme has helped the
management to gauge and monitor the overall service
performance of our sales team. By analyzing the results of
MSP, we are able to identify areas for improvements. The
management team has used these results to tailor-made
training programme to specific shop and individual level.
All these efforts align with the company’s philosophy of
providing “Service Excellence” to customer. Hopefully these
measures will help propel the company’s business forward.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dr. YEUNG Ming Biu, aged 80, the Chairman of the
Company, is a Co-founder of the Group. He has over 60
years’ experience in the watch business and is a Permanent
Honorary Director of The Federation of Hong Kong Watch
Trades and Industries Limited. He holds Honorary Fellow
awarded by The Chinese University of Hong Kong and
Honorary Doctor degree awarded by Lansbridge University
of New Brunswick of Canada.

Mr. YEUNG Him Kit, Dennis, aged 47, joined the Group
in 1993. He became Managing Director of the Company
in March 2003. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Commerce
from the University of Toronto, Canada. Mr. Yeung is the
son of Dr. Yeung Ming Biu.

Mr. FUNG Kwong Yiu, aged 72, joined the Group in 1974
and has over 50 years’ experience in the watch business.
He is a Permanent Honorary Director of The Federation of
Hong Kong Watch Trades and Industries Limited.

Madam YEUNG Man Yee, Shirley, aged 54, joined the
Group in 1991. She received a Higher Diploma in Business
Studies and Diploma in Watch and Jewellery Management
from North Herts College in the United Kingdom and CFH
Institute in Switzerland respectively. Madam Yeung is the
daughter of Dr. Yeung Ming Biu.

Mr. LAM Hing Lun, Alain, aged 57, joined the Group in
1992. He is the Finance Director and Company Secretary
of the Company and became Director of the Company in
April 2003. He is responsible for the Group’s accounting,
financial control and secretarial matters. He has over 30
years’ experience in accounting and auditing. Mr. Lam
holds a Master Degree of Business Administration from the
University of Hull. He is a Fellow Member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and an Associate
Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. CHOI Kwok Yum, aged 61, joined the Group in 1969.

He became Director of the Company in April 2003 and has
over 47 years’ experience in the watch business.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dr. SUN Ping Hsu, Samson (“Dr. Sun”), M.B.E., J.P.,
aged 91, has been an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since September 1993. He is the Chairman
of Sun International Group of companies. He was Deputy
Chairman and a Director of Gilman & Co., Ltd. and Inchcape
Hong Kong respectively from 1967 to 1985. Dr. Sun is
the Honorary Permanent President of The Federation of
Hong Kong Watch Trades and Industries Limited. He has
over 60 years’ experience in the manufacturing, marketing
and distribution of watches, and 30 years’ experience in
the marketing and distribution of consumer and electronic
products. He has involved in the PRC trade since 1979,
and continues to be active in both trading and property
development in the PRC. Dr. Sun has chaired many
voluntary community services and charitable organisations.
He was a Member of Basic Law of HKSAR Consultative
Committee in 1980’s. He is an Independent Non-executive
Director of National Electronics Holdings Limited (stock
code: 0213), and Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (stock
code: 0131).

Dr. LI Sau Hung, Eddy, B.B.S., J.P., aged 61, has over
40 years’ experience in the manufacturing business. He is
a Member of the National Committee of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, the President of Hong
Kong Economic & Trade Association and the President of
The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong. Dr.
Li holds a Master Degree of Business Administration and
a PhD Degree in Economics. He was the 1991 awardee of
The Ten Outstanding Young Persons and the 1993 awardee
of Young Industrialists of Hong Kong. He has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
September 1993. He is currently an Independent Non-
executive Director of Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited
(stock code: 0894), Midas International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1172). All companies listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. CHOI Man Chau, Michael (“Mr. Choi”), aged 60, is
a Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (practising). Mr. Choi has been
practising public accountancy in Hong Kong for over 23
years. Mr. Choi was formerly an Independent Non-executive
Director of Hunan Nonferrous Metals Corporation Limited
(stock code: 2626) which was listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange until its voluntary withdrawal of listing in
March 2015, and Simsen International Corporation Limited
(stock code: 0993), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. SZE Yuk Woo, aged 65, is the General Manager
overseeing the Group’s general operation in the PRC. He
joined the Group in 1997 and has over 46 years’ experience
in the watch business.

Mr. YEUNG Chi On, aged 56, is the General Manager
overseeing the retail operation in Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in 1980 and has over 34 years’ experience in the
watch business.

Mr. LAM Tung Hing, aged 58, is the General Manager and
overseeing the retail operation in Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in 2003 and has over 36 years’ experience in the
watch business.
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CORPORATE GOVERANCE REPORT
SHEABE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company strives to attain and maintain the high
standard of corporate governance as it believes that
effective corporate governance practices are fundamental to
enhancing shareholder value and safe guarding shareholder
interests. The Company has accordingly adopted good
corporate governance principles that emphasize a
quality board of Directors (“the Board”), effective internal
control, stringent disclosure practices and transparency
and accountability to all stakeholders. It is, in addition,
committed to continuously improving these practices and
inculcating an ethical corporate culture.

The principles of corporate governance adopted by the
Group emphasize a quality board, sound internal control,
and transparency and accountability to all stakeholders.

Throughout the year ended 31 March, 2016, the Company
has complied with the code provisions prescribed in the CG
Code set out in the Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules except
for the deviation from the Code Provision A.4.1 which is
explained in the following relevant paragraph.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Mode set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors (“the
Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with
the required standard set out in the Code for the year under
review.
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CORPORATE GOVERANCE REPORT
HEABE

THE BOARD
Corporate Strategy

The primary objective of the Company is to enhance long-
term total return for our shareholders. To achieve this
objective, the Group’s strategy is to place equal emphasis
on achieving sustainable recurring earning growth and
maintaining the Group’s strong financial profile. Management
Discussion and Analysis contain discussion and analyses of
the Group’s performance and the basis on which the Group
generates or preserves value over the longer term and
the basis on which the Group will execute its strategy for
delivering the Group’s objective.

Role of the Board

The Board, which is accountable to shareholders for long-
term performance of the Company, is responsible for
directing the strategic objectives of the Company and
overseeing the management of the business. Directors
are charged with the task of promoting the success of the
Company and making decision in the best interest of the
Company

The Board, led by the Chairman, Dr. Yeung Ming Biu,
approves and monitors Group wide strategies and
policies, annual budgets and business plans, evaluates
the performance of the Company, and supervises the
management of the Company (“Management”). Management
is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Group Managing Director.
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Board Composition

At 31 March, 2016, the Board comprised nine Directors,
including the Chairman, Deputy Chairman and Group
Managing Director, Group Finance Director, three Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors.
Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
Directors and Senior Management Section on pages 8 to
10. The composition of the Board is well balanced with
each Director having sound knowledge, experience and/or
expertise relevant to the business of the Group.

For a Director to be considered independent, the Board
must determine that the Director does not have any direct or
indirect material relationship with the Group. In determining
the independence of Directors, the Board follows the
requirements set out in the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Role of the Chairman is separate from that of Deputy
Chairman and Group Managing Director. Such division of
responsibilities helps to reinforce their independence and
accountability.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to,
and overseeing the functions of, the Board to ensure that
the Board acts in the best interest of the Group and the
Board meetings are planned and conducted effectively. The
Chairman is responsible for approving the agenda of each
Board meeting, taking into account, where appropriate,
matters proposed by Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
With the support of Executive Directors and the Company
Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors
are properly informed on issues arising at Board meetings
and provided with adequate and accurate information in
a timely manner. The Chairman also actively encourages
Directors to be fully engaged in the Board’s affairs and
make contribution to the Board’s functions. The Board,
under the leadership of the Chairman, has adopted good
corporate governance practices and procedures and taken
appropriate steps to provide effective communication with
shareholders.
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The Deputy Chairman and Group Managing Director, Mr.
Yeung Him Kit, Dennis, is responsible for managing business
of the Group, attending to the formulation and successful
implementation of the Group policies and assuming full
accountability to the Board for all Group operations. Acting
as the principal manager of the Group’s business, the
Deputy Chairman and Group Managing Director attends to
developing strategic operating plans that reflect the long-
term objectives and priorities established by the Board
and is directly responsible for maintaining the operational
performance of the Group. Working with the other Executive
Directors and the executive management team of each
core business divisions, he ensures that the Board is fully
apprised of the funding requirements of the business of
the Group and presents annual budgets to the Board for
consideration and approval. With the assistance of the
Group Finance Director, the Deputy Chairman and Group
Managing Director sees to it that the funding requirements
of the business are met and he closely monitors the
operating and financial results of the business against plans
and budgets, taking remedial action when necessary. He
maintains an ongoing dialogue with the Chairman and all
Directors to keep them fully informed of all major business
development and issues. He is also responsible for building
and maintaining an effective team to support him in his role.

Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, there
are three Independent Non-executive Directors representing
one-third of the Board of Directors. Among the three
Independent Non-executive Directors, one of them have
appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise as required by Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors the written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company based on such confirmation, considers Dr.
Sun Ping Hsu, Samson, Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy and Mr. Choi
Man Chau, Michael to be independent.
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Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Under the Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. However, the independent non-executive directors
were not appointed for a specific term but are subject to
retirement by rotation in annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
The management of the Company considered that there
is no imminent need to revise the letter of appointment of
independent non-executive directors by adding a specific
term in the letter of appointment.

Board Meetings and Practices

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a year,
and the Board will also meet on other occasions when
a board-level decision on a particular matter is required.
Between scheduled meetings, senior management of the
Group provides information to Directors on a regular basis
on the activities and development in the business of the
Group. Throughout the year, Directors participate in the
consideration and approval of routine and operational
matters of the Company by way of circular resolutions
with supporting explanatory materials, supplemented by
additional verbal/written information or notification from the
Company Secretary and other executives as when required.
Details of material or notable transactions of subsidiary
companies are provided to the Directors as appropriate.
Whenever, warranted, additional Board meetings are held.

The Directors will receive details of agenda items for
decision and minutes of committee meeting in advance of
each Board meeting. With respect to regular meeting of
the Board, Directors receive written notice of the meeting
at least 14 days in advance and agenda with supporting
Board papers no less than 3 days prior to the meetings.
With respect to the other meetings, Directors are given
as much as notice as is reasonable and practicable in the
circumstances.
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ERERRE

Any Director wishing to do so in the furtherance of his or
her duty may take independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense. Directors are encouraged to update
their skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Group
through their initial induction, ongoing participation at Board
and Committee meetings, and through meeting with key

members of the Management.

During the year ended 31 March, 2016, meetings and
Directors attendance records for the meetings held are set

out below:

Executive Directors
Dr. Yeung Ming Biu (7) — Chairman
Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis (7)
— Deputy Chairman and Group
Managing Director
Mr. Fung Kwong Yiu

Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley (7)

Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain
— Group Finance Director

Mr. Choi Kwok Yum

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson

Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy

Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael

Note:

HITESR
BREB L) — £E
BOTEE R E (1)

— BIEEFEE
BEERETE
BRI

BB EL (1)

PR B8 S5 £
— EFYBEF

EES KL
HIHBTTEF
BEREE L
FHEBL
SN LA

(1) Dr. Yeung Ming Biu is the father of Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis and

Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley.
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Training and Commitment

The Company provides Continuous Professional
Development (“CPD”) training and relevant reading materials
to Directors to help ensure that they are apprised of the
latest changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory
environment in which the Group conducts its business
and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and as director of the Company. In addition, Dr.
Sun Ping Hsu, Samson, Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy and Lam
Hing Lun, Alain attend external forums or brief sessions
(including delivery speeches by Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain) on
the relevant tropics. Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael has also
participated in CPD programs required by The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The directors have provided to the Company with details of
the CPD training undertaken by them from time to time.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and Board activities are efficiently
and effectively conducted. These objectives are achieved
through the adherence to proper Board processes and the
timely preparation and dissemination to Directors and Board
Committees comprehensive Board agendas and papers.
Minutes of all Board meetings and Board Committees are
prepared by and maintained by the Company Secretary
to record in sufficient details the matters considered and
decisions reached by the Board or Committee, including any
concerns raised or dissenting views voiced by any Director.
All the minutes are sent to Directors and are available for
inspection by any Director upon request.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that
the Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory and
corporate governance developments relating to the Group
and that it takes these into consideration when making
decisions for the Group. The Company Secretary is also
directly responsible for the Group’s compliance with all
obligations of the Listing Rules including publications
and dissemination of annual reports and interim reports
within the periods laid down in the Listing Rules,
timely dissemination to shareholders and the market of
announcement and information relating to the Group and
assisting in the notification of Directors’ dealings in securities
of the Group.
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The Company Secretary advises the Directors on their
obligations for disclosure of interests in securities,
connected transactions and price-sensitive information and
ensures that the standards and disclosures required by the
Listing Rules are observed and, where required, reflected in
the annual report of the Company.

In relation to connected transactions, regular seminars
are conducted for executives from business units within
the Group to ensure that such transactions are handled
in compliance with the Listing Rules. Details analyses are
performed on all potential connected transactions to ensure
full compliance and for Directors’ considerations.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the Directors
on their obligations for disclosure of interests and dealings
in the Group’s securities, connected transactions and
price-sensitive information and ensures that the standard
and disclosure required by the Listing Rules are observed
and where required, reflected in the annual report of the
Company.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval in accordance with the Bye-laws
of the Company. Whist the Company Secretary reports to
the Board through the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman
and Group Managing Director, all members of the Board
have access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary. Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain has appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company since 1992 and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Group affairs.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
and the Financial Reporting

The annual and interim results of the Company are published
in a timely manner of the year end and the half year.

The following statement, which set out the responsibilities
of the Directors in relation to the financial statements,
should be read in conjunction with, but distinguished from,
the Independent Auditor’'s report on pages 44 to 46 which
acknowledge the reporting responsibilities of the Group’s
Auditor.
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Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparation of the Annual Report and financial statements
of the Company to ensure that the financial statements
give a true and fair presentation in accordance with Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable accounting
standards.

Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group applies appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently applied and makes judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps accounting records which disclose the financial
position of the Group upon which financial statements of the
Group could be prepared in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and
to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities within
the Group.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquires, consider
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that,
for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis in preparation the financial statements.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The Board is satisfied with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“Deloitte”) in respect of the audit fees they charged, the
process and its effectives of the audit and has resolved to
recommend their reappointment as the Company’s external
auditors at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

During the financial year, the services provided by, and the
associated remuneration paid to Deloitte were as follows:

BB &

ExeEmEy e MEmRS EstmT([12
HEMEMBBMZZBER - EitBiE
REARE  YHREZNERERRBS
RE LBEEBERREZIMNEZEED -

RAMBFEEA - BEREM RS LA
itz M T

HK$’000
FET
Audit FET 2,780
Taxation and non-audit services s M IEE R 357
3,137
BOARD COMMITTEES BEEXXET
Audit Committee EREES

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-
executive Directors who possess the appropriate business
and financial management experience and skills to
understand financial statements and internal controls. It is
chaired by Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson with Dr. Li Sau Hung,
Eddy, and Mr. Choi Man Chau as members.

Under the term of reference of the Audit Committee, it is
required to oversee the relationship between the Company
and its external auditors, review the Group’s preliminary
results, interim results and annual financial statements,
monitor compliance with statutory and Listing Rules
requirements, review the scope, extent and effectiveness of
the activities of the Group’s internal audit functions, engage
independent legal or other advisers as it determines is
necessary and perform investigations.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee adopted by
the Board are published on the Group’s website.
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During the year ended 31 March, 2016, 4 meetings were
held. The attendance records for the audit committee
meetings are set out below:

REBE_ZE-—R"F=ZA=+—BLFER
BOTHOREE ERZEERRHE
ACSERELFIEAE

Directors’
Attendance
EEHER

Members of the Audit Committee ERZEEME
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson BFREE L 4/4
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy FHEHL 4/4
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael E23°9))\ birtas 4/4

During the year, the Audit Committee performed the duties
and responsibilities under its terms of reference and other
duties of the Existing Code.

Financial Statements

The Audit committee meets with the Group Finance Director
and other senior management of the Group from time to
time to review the interim and final results and the Interim
Report and Annual Report of the Group and other financial,
internal control and risk management matters of the Group.
It considers and discusses the reports and presentations of
Management, the Group internal and external auditors, with
a view of ensuring that the Group’s consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. It also meets
the Group’s external auditors, Deloitte, to consider their
reports on the scope and outcome of their independent
review of the interim financial report and on their annual
audit of the consolidated financial statements.

External Auditors

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the external
auditors’ independence and objectively and the effectiveness
of the audit process. It has received representing from
Deloitte of their independence and objectively and holds
meetings with Deloitte to consider the scope of their
audit, approve the fees thereon, and the scope and
appropriateness of non-audit services, if required, to
be provided by them. The Audit Committee also makes
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
retention of the external auditors.
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The Group’s policy regarding the engagement of Deloitte for
various services listed below is as follows:

e  Audit services — includes audit services provided in
connection with the audit of the consolidated financial
statements. All such services are to be provided by
external auditors.

e Audited related services - included services that
would normally be provided by an external auditors
but not generally included in audit fees, for example,
audit of the Group’s pension plans, due diligence and
accounting advice related to mergers and acquisitions,
internal control reviews of systems and/or process,
issuance of special audit reports for tax purposes
(if any). The external auditors are to be invited to
undertake these services that they must or are best
placed to undertake in their capacity as auditors.

e  Taxation related services — includes all tax compliance
and tax planning services except for those services
which are provided in connection with the audit. The
Group uses the services of the external auditors where
they are best suited. All other significant taxation
related work may be undertaken by other parties as
appropriate.

° Others services — includes, for example audit or reviews
of third parties to assess compliance with contracts,
risk management diagnostics and assessments, and
non-financial system consultations (if any). The external
auditors are also permitted to assist management and
the Group’s internal auditors with internal investigations
and fact-finding into alleged improprieties. These
services are subject to specific approval by the Audit
Committee.

° General consulting services — the external auditors

are not eligible to provide services involving general
consulting work including accountancy services.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal Control

The Audit Committee assists the Board in meeting its
responsibilities for maintaining an effective system of
internal control. It reviews the process by which the Group
evaluates its control environment and risk assessment
process, and the way in which business and control risks
are managed. In addition, it review with the Group’s internal
auditors the work plan for their audit together with their
resources requirements and consider the report to the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of internal controls in the
Group business operations.

These reviews and reports are taken into consideration by
the Audit Committee when it makes its recommendations
to the Board for approval of the consolidated financial
statements for the year.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
including two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson and Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy and
a Deputy Chairman and Managing Director, Mr. Yeung Him
Kit, Dennis. Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson is the chairman of
the Committee. The Committee meets for the determination
of the remuneration package of Directors and senior
management of the Group. In addition, the Committee
also meets as and when required to consider remuneration
related matters.

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
assist the Board in achieving its objectives of attracting,
retaining and motivating people of the highest calibre and
experience needed to shape and execute strategy across
the Group’s substantial business operations. It assists
the Group in the administration of a fair and transparent
procedure for setting remuneration policies including
assessing the performance of Directors and senior executive
of the Group and determining their remuneration packages.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
adopted by the Board are published on the Group’s
Website.
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The remuneration of Directors and senior executives
is determined with reference to the performance and
profitability of the Group as well as remuneration
benchmarks from other local and/or international companies
prevailing market conditions. Directors and employees also
participate in bonus arrangement determined in accordance
with the performance of the Group and the individual’s
performance.

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2016, one
remuneration committee meeting has been held. Throughout
the financial year, all members of the Remuneration
Committee have reviewed background information on
market data, the Group’s business activities and human
resources issues, and headcounts and staff costs. The
Remuneration Committee has also reviewed and approved
the proposed director fees for year ended 31 March 2017,
year-end bonus and remuneration packages of Executive
Directors and senior management of the Company for the
year ended 31 March, 2016 and made recommendations
to the Board on the directors’ fees for independent non-
executive directors, however, do not participate in the
determination of their own remunerations.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not established a nomination committee.
However, Executive Directors identify potential new directors
and recommend to the Board for decision. The Board
considers potential directorship based on the candidate’s
qualifications, business experience and suitability to the
Company. During the financial year ended 31 March, 2016,
no nomination meeting has held.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE AND GROUP RISK
MANAGEMENT

Introduction

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system
of internal control and assessment and management of
risks.

In meeting its responsibilities, the Board seeks to increase
risk awareness across the Group’s business operations
and has put in place policies and procedures, including
parameters of delegated authority, which provide a
framework for the identification and management of risks. It
also reviews and monitors the effectiveness of the systems
of internal control to ensure that the policies and procedures
in place are adequate. Reporting and reviewing activities
include review by the Executive Directors and the Board
and approval of detailed operational and financial reports,
budgets and plans provided by the management of the
business operations, review by the Board of actual results
against budgets, review by the Audit Committee of the
ongoing work of internal audit function and risk management
function, as well as regular business review by Executive
Directors and the executive management team of each core
business division.

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee reviews
regularly the corporate governance structure and practices
within the Group and monitors compliance fulfillment on an
ongoing basis.

Whilst these procedures are designed to identify and
manage risks that could adversely impact the achievement
of the Group’s business objectives, they do not provide
absolute assurance against material mis-statement errors,
losses or fraud.
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Internal Control Environment and Systems

The Board is overall responsible for monitoring the
operations of the business within the Group. Executive
Directors are appointed to the Board of all material
operating subsidiaries for monitoring of the operations of
those companies, including attendance at Board meetings,
review and approval of business strategies, budgets and
plans, and setting of key business performance targets. The
executive management team of each core business division
is accountable for the conduct and performance of each
business in the division within the agreed strategies and
similarity the management of each business is accountable
for its conduct and performance.

The Group’s internal control procedures include a system for
reporting information to the executive management teams of
each core business and the Executive Directors.

Business plans and budgets are prepared annually by the
management of individual businesses and subject to review
and approval by Executive Directors. Executive Directors
review the differences to the budget and for approval. When
setting budgets, management identifies, evaluates and
reports on the likelihood and potential financial impact of
significant business risks.

The Executive Directors review monthly management reports
on the financial results and key operating statistics of each
business and hold regular meetings with the executive
management team and senior management of business
operations to review these reports, business performance
against budgets, forecasts, significant risk sensitivities and
strategies. In addition, Group Finance Director and members
of his finance team review monthly performance against
budget and forecast, and to address accounting and finance
related matters.
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The Group Finance Director has established guidelines
and procedures for approval and control of expenditures.
Operating expenditures are subject to overall budget control
and are controlled within each business with approval level
for such expenditures being set by reference to the level of
responsibility of each executive officer. Capital expenditures
are subject to overall control within the annual budget
review and approval process, and more specific control
and approval prior to commitment by the Group Finance
Director or Executive Directors are required for unbudgeted
expenditures and material expenditures within the approval
budget. Reports of actual versus budgeted and approved
expenditures are also regularly reviewed.

Internal audit department reporting to the Deputy Chairman
and Group Managing Director on regular basis and also
directly to the Audit Committee if necessary, provides
independent assurance as to the existence and the
effectiveness of the risk management activities and controls
in the Group’s business operations. Using risk assessment
methodology and taking into account the dynamics of the
Group activities, internal audit derives its yearly audit plan
which is reviewed by the Audit Committee, and reassessed
during the year as needed to ensure that adequate
resources are deployed and the plan’s objectives are met.
Internal audit is responsible for assessing the Group’s
internal control system, formulating an impartial opinion on
the system, and reporting its findings to the Group Finance
Director, Deputy Chairman and Group Managing Director
and the Audit Committee as well as following up on all
reports to ensure that all issues have been satisfactorily
resolved. In addition, a regular dialogue is maintained with
the Group’s external auditors so that both are aware of the
significant factors which may affect their respective scopes
of work.

Depending on the nature of business and risk exposure
of individual business units, the scope of the work
performed by the internal audit function includes financial
and operations review, recurring and surprise audits, fraud
investigation and productivity effectively reviews.

Reports from the external auditors on internal controls and
relevant financial reporting matters, if any, are presented to
the Group Finance Director and the relevant management
team. These reports are reviewed and the appropriate
actions taken.
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Corporate Governance

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of
developing and maintaining sound and effective corporate
governance within the Group and is committed to ensuring
that the effective governance structure is put in place to
continuously review and improve the corporate governance
practices within the Group in light of evolving environment
and regulatory requirements.

Under the term of reference, the Audit Committee has been
delegated the corporate function of the Board to monitor,
procure and manage corporate governance compliance
within the Group. To assist the Audit Committee in fulfilling
its responsibilities, Company Secretary with representatives
from key departments of the Company are continuously
examine the corporate governance structure of the Group,
provide updates, identify emerging matters of compliance,
structure appropriate compliance mechanisms and monitor
compliance fulfillment on an ongoing basis.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the compliance status
and is satisfied that the Company has complied throughout
the year with all the code provisions of the CG Code
applicable during the year except for the deviation from
the Code Provision A.4.1 that is explained in the previous
relevant paragraph.

Group Risk Management

The Group Managing Director and the Group Finance
Director have the responsibility of developing and
implementing risk mitigation strategies including the
deploying of insurance to transfer the financial impact
of risks. The Group Finance Director is responsible for
arranging appropriate insurance coverage.
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Review of Internal Control Systems

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’ internal control
system for the year ended 31 March, 2016 covering all
material financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions, and is satisfied that such
system are effective and adequate. In the view of the Board,
the system of internal control of the Group is sufficient to
safeguard the interest of the Group.

COMMUNICATION WITH INVESTORS AND
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with the shareholders of
the Company and investors. Therefore, the Board and the
Group’s senior Management maintain close communications
with investors, analysts, fund managers and the media by
various channels including interviews and meetings. The
Group specially assigns Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain, Group
Finance Director, being the contact person of investor
relations to respond the requests of information and queries
from the investors.

The Board also welcomes the view of shareholders on
matters affecting the Group and encourages them to attend
shareholders’ meeting to communicate with the Board or
Management directly.

SHAREHOLDER’S RIGHT

The Board is committed to providing clear and full
performance information of the Group to the shareholders
through publication of notices, announcements, circulars,
interim and annual reports. In addition to dispatching
circulars, notices, financial reports to shareholders,
additional information are also available to the shareholders
on the Group’s website.
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Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meeting
of the Company, such as the annual general meeting and at
which the Chairman and Directors are available to answer
questions on the Group’s business. All shareholders have
statutory right to call for extraordinary general meeting and
put forward agenda items for consideration by shareholders
by sending to the Company Secretary at the registered
office a written request for such general meeting together
with the proposed agenda items. All substantial resolutions
at the general meeting are decided on a poll. The poll is
conducted by the Group’s Share Registrars and the results
of the poll are published on the websites at The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Group. Financial
and other information is made available on the Group’s
website, which is regularly updated.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
March, 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company as
well as engaged in watch trading. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 47 to 48.

An interim dividend of 0.1 Hong Kong cents per share was
declared and paid to the shareholders during the year. A
final dividend of 0.25 Hong Kong cents per share being
proposed by the directors is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

RESERVES

As at 31st March, 2016, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution consisted of contributed surplus of
HK$122,183,000 and retained profits of HK$76,879,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is available
for distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(@) to do so would render the Company unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than its liabilities.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group incurred approximately HK$17.2
million on the purchase of property, plant and equipment.
Details of these and other movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note
13 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Dr. Yeung Ming Biu (Chairman)
Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis
(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Fung Kwong Yiu
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain
Mr. Choi Kwok Yum

Independent non-executive directors:

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain, Mr. Choi Kwok Yum and Dr. Li
Sau Hung, Eddy retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

None of the directors has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Details of the remuneration paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company and the senior management of the
Group for the year ended 31st March, 2016 are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31st March, 2016 and up to the

date of this report, the other director of subsidiary of the
Company was Ms. Cheong, Wai Lin.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st March, 2016, the interests of the directors of
the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company, as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO”), or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
were as follows:

EEHACESEENRAKE

BRBEREZFRPEERA(TEFSRRBATK
Bl 1) E321GHERE 2 S MATRE 8L
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Number of shares held

FrsRGHE

Percentage of

Total  issued share

Personal Family Corporate number capital of

interest interest interest of shares  the Company

L NGIRE

Name of director Espg BAEE FikER PG RO&%  TREAEAN

Dr. Yeung Ming Biu BREEL 19,669,583 7920000 128,164,561 155,754,144 27.30%
(note (a))
(Wiit(a)

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis BiThREE 5,524,000 - (note (b)) 5,524,000 0.97%
(W)

Mr. Fung Kwong Yiu BEELE 6,508,160 - (note (c)) 6,508,160 1.14%
(Wit(e)

Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley LG G 2,640,000 221,161 (note (d) 2,861,161 0.50%
(Wi ()

Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain MEBRLE 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000 0.63%

Mr. Choi Kwok Yum BERLE 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000 0.63%

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson FEEEL - - 3,200,000 3,200,000 0.56%
(note (e))
(Wit (e)
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DIR

ECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Dr. Yeung Ming Biu and his wife, Madam Au Po Kee, are the
beneficial owners of 45% and 22.5% respectively of the issued share
capital of Realtower Holdings Limited. Realtower Holdings Limited
and Dr. Yeung Ming Biu are the respective beneficial owners of 55%
and 10% of the issued share capital of Furama Investments Limited,
which is the beneficial owner of 80% of the issued share capital of
Datsun Holdings Limited. Datsun Holdings Limited is the beneficial
owner of 127,776,000 shares in the Company.

Dr. Yeung Ming Biu is the beneficial owner of 47.5% of the issued
share capital of Y.H. Chan Limited, which is the beneficial owner of
25% of the issued share capital of Furama Investments Limited. Y.H.
Chan Limited also directly holds 388,561 shares in the Company.

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis is the beneficial owner of 10% and 7%
of the issued share capital of Realtower Holdings Limited and Real
Champ Limited respectively. Real Champ Limited is the beneficial
owner of 20% of the issued share capital of Datsun Holdings Limited.

Mr. Fung Kwong Yiu is the beneficial owner of 6% of the issued
share capital of Real Champ Limited.

Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley is the beneficial owner of 7.5% of
the issued share capital of Realtower Holdings Limited.

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson and his family members are the beneficial
owners of the entire issued share capital of Sun International Limited,
which is the beneficial owner of 3,200,000 shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, and other than certain nominee
shares in subsidiaries held by a director in trust for the

Com

pany, none of the directors of the Company had any

interest or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section

352
and

of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURE

(@) 2003 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
Company’s special general meeting held on 3rd
November, 2003, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”). The
2003 Share Option Scheme was valid for a period of
ten years commencing on the adoption date on 3rd
November, 2003.

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, options may
be granted to any director, employee, consultant,
customer, supplier or advisor of the Group or a
company in which the Company holds an interest or a
subsidiary of such company, the trustee of the eligible
persons or a company beneficially owned by the
eligible persons. The purpose of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme is to attract and retain quality personnel
and other persons to provide incentive to them to
contribute to the business and operation of the Group.
No eligible persons shall be granted an option in any
12-month period for such number of shares (issued
and to be issued) which in aggregate would exceed
1% of the share capital of the Company in issue on the
last day of such 12-month period unless approval of
the shareholders of the Company has been obtained
in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
The exercisable period is determined by the directors
of the Company, which shall not be more than 10 years
from the date of grant, and may include a minimum
period for which the options must be held before it can
be exercised. The exercise price per share payable on
the exercise of an option equals to the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of one share;

(b) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; and

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant.

BREGTIARESREROIES

(a)

—EE-FRRETE

REARBANR_FTZT=F+—HA=H
RITZBREFRIAEG LBB 2 ERR
@ ARFCRAB IR EI([ =
ET=-_FREEFE]  —TT=
FREETSHRAEHE -_ZTT=

T—A=ZHEFABH+F-

BIE T = FRERES - BiE
AIRFALEEZIMES - EE - @
M 2P #HEFIBAAIER
BEZARZ R ANRIHREA TZ
BB AR - AéWAiZEHAﬁA
ERALTESZEEZA —EE=
i%h%ﬁﬂa&ﬁ%%Aﬁ&E@
AT THRE) - ARSI RSB TR
REBZE¥BREEELTE - RIE
BT S EmARBI( EmRA ) -
BrIEEVS AR R R E - T RINE
A+ —{EAHEA - AEBALTTE
ﬁﬁ?ﬁ&kﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&%?
BIT)ARBBARARZ T =@A
%ﬁz 1% — EZE%ﬁ%$ﬁ%Z
BRE - THEHIAAR R ESE
E NS BBEERE BB TF
MEIEEREITERINBR A 2 &E
HAPR o TETTF AR RS B 2 BARTT
FEHEAEUAT=ZEFRZERS

(@) —RAXADEE
(b) BORIRHE BEBRIE R
EBXRAHR2EREHE K&

(©) TRERELE BRI RS X
EE%Q%#E%?%%%ZE
P T(E o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND DIRECTORS’ EBRETENEERERMNES

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR (%)
DEBENTURE (Continued)
(a) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) —ZEZE=FERETE(Z)
The 2003 Share Option Scheme expired on 2nd CEESEBRRA N T —=F
November, 2013. The options could be exercised by +—AZHEMm-° Eﬁﬂx*&ﬂgﬁ@ﬁﬁi%
the participants at any time during the option period E’\ﬁﬁﬂﬂgﬁﬁFﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂfuf T M
and notwithstanding that the 2003 Share Option TR —_TE=FRREFEIEE -
Scheme had expired.
The following table discloses movements of the options Ti‘%?&?ﬁ%%iﬁ?ﬁ%&ﬁ B
granted under the 2003 Share Options Scheme to W@T)%‘Egﬂggziﬁ%ﬂ% ErT SR
directors, certain employees and consultants during the It )
year:
Number of
shares under Original Adjusted
options at Date of exercise exercise
Name of category 1.4.2015 and grant of price per price per
of participant 31.3.2016 options share share Exercisable period
R-E-1F
mA-BR
L
=A=1-H -
BRESR BRE J?*ﬁ"@ﬂﬁ L
SEERZIER ZRBEE R AH 7EfE BRITEE TIEHE
HKS HKS HKS
BT v BT
(note) (note)
(Hizt) (Hizt)
Directors EE
?rﬂ\gfegg Ming Biu 1,440,000 06.04.2011 413 3.44 06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021
PEN
Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis 1,440,000 06.04.2011 413 3.44 06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021
BT EE
Mr. Fung Kwong Yiu 3,000,000 06.04.2011 413 3.44 06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021
BERTE
Madam Yeung Man Yee,
Shirley 1,440,000 06.04.2011 413 3.44 06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021
BB
%rﬁl}_ﬁam Hing Lun, Alain 3,600,000 06.04.2011 413 3.44 06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021
er
Mr. Choi Kwok Yum 3,600,000 06.04.2011 413 3.44 06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021
14,520,000
Other employees £ g &
Ty*%e A 14,400,000 06.04.2011 413 3.44 06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021
A%
Type B 18,000,000 29.08.2011 4.80 N/A 29.08.2011 — 28.08.2021
BiE DM
ConsultantsEEFEJ
T);%GA 2,640,000 06.04.2011 413 3.44 06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021
A%R
Type B 5,000,000 29.08.2011 4.80 N/A 29.08.2011 — 28.08.2021
BiE NMaH
Total @3t 54,560,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND DIRECTORS’ BRETEREZRERMIES
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR (&)
DEBENTURE (Continued)

(a) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) —ZES=FBERETE(Z)

Note: An ordinary resolution was passed by the shareholders at the Bl BREERARATNR-_ZE—F+A=+N
annual general meeting of the Company held on 28th July, ARITZBRRBFRE LBBATBEAE
2011 approving a bonus issue of shares to shareholders of ROBERKARTARARRER - E%
the Company on the basis of one new ordinary share for every REFARIREARAER—RNLTR
five ordinary shares held. The number of shares under the B o RITHEIERE 2 RMDE B RARITE
outstanding options and the exercise price per share of the BREZERTEEERE-ZSZ=F
outstanding options were adjusted accordingly pursuant to the FERRFEET Bl 2 IERIE L AR FE FAE -

terms of the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

(b) 2013 Share Option Scheme (b) —EBE—=FERETE
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual BEAATIR-_ZE—=F7\A+=H
general meeting of the Company held on 13th August, BITZREBFERE BB ERR
2013, a new share option scheme was adopted with EROR-ETE=FERETEIEM
effect on 3rd November, 2013 (the “2013 Share Option B> —HER-ZE—=%+—HA=ZH4%
Scheme”) after the expiry of the 2003 Share Option M ERETE (S —=FBR
Scheme. REFHEl ) B -

—Z — XF F 3, Annual Report 2016 37



38

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURE (Continued)

(b) 2013 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Under the 2013 Share Option Scheme, options may
be granted to (i) any director, employee or consultant
of the Group or a company in which the Company
holds an equity interest or a subsidiary of such
company (“Affiliate”); or (ii) any discretionary trust
whose discretionary objects include any director,
employee or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate;
or (i) a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate; or
(iv) any customer, supplier or adviser whose service to
the Group or business with the Group contributes or
is expected to contribute to the business or operation
of the Group. The purpose of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme is to attract and retain quality personnel
and other persons to provide incentive to them to
contribute to the business and operation of the Group.
The total number of shares available for issue under
the 2013 Share Option Scheme as at the date of this
report is 57,061,022 shares. No eligible persons shall
be granted an option in any 12-month period for such
number of shares (issued and to be issued) which in
aggregate would exceed 1% of the share capital of the
Company in issue on the last day of such 12-month
period unless approval of the shareholders of the
Company has been obtained in accordance with the
Listing Rules. The exercisable period is determined by
the directors of the Company, which shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of grant, and may include
a minimum period for which the options must be held
before it can be exercised. The exercise price per
share payable on the exercise of an option equals to
the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of one share;

RAKITEBEFR DT Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURE (Continued)

(b) 2013 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(b) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; and

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant.

The 2013 Share Option Scheme will remain in force
until 2nd November, 2023.

No option was granted, exercised or lapsed under the
2013 Share Option Scheme during the year since its
effective date on 3rd November, 2013 and there was
no outstanding share option as at 31st March, 2016.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st March, 2016, according to the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO, the following persons (not being a director or chief
executive of the Company) had interests in the share capital
of the Company.

Name of shareholder

BRERE

Datsun Holdings Limited
Furama Investments Limited
Realtower Holdings Limited

BRETIRESEERONES
(%)

(b) —E—=FBEBRETE(Z)

b) BONKELEBEBMIME AR
EBRAHRZERETE K&

() BOREERRLE R RfEZE
BaEMXAEARERMEBZE
BB E

—B SRR AN
BEE-_E-_=F+—HZH-

BEAMBH-_ZT—=4+—HF=H
RB2FERN BMEBRERE-Z
—=FEREFEIERL - 1TESK
M mMRZZE—ARF=ZA=+—8BMN
|mARITE B -

FERR

KRR EIRIEE 7 R EIE &P 336 55 F
FEEZMAR RZE—XRF=A
=+t—H UTALAFEREARBZE
FHITHREAR)RARRIRATEAER -

Percentage of
issued share
Number of capital of the

shares held Company

HEAFE
FEROGBE BITREFIL
127,776,000 22.39%
127,776,000 22.39%
127,776,000 22.39%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Realtower Holdings Limited holds 55% of the issued share
capital of Furama Investments Limited which holds 80%
of the issued share capital of Datsun Holdings Limited.
Accordingly, both Realtower Holdings Limited and Furama
Investments Limited are deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the 127,776,000 shares in the Company held
by Datsun Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2016, there was
no person who had any interests or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company according to
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

There is no contract of significance between the Group and
a controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, including for the
provision of services to the Group.

R A KRITEEBRLD T Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers were less than 30% of the
Group’s total sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers comprised approximately
95% of the Group’s total purchases while the purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier was
approximately 81% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder,
which to the knowledge of the directors owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest
in the share capital of any of the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations totalling
HK$80,000.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 11 to 30.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31st March, 2016, the Group had a total of about 700
employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

FEREFRAKRER

FR AEEAATFREZEHERD
RAKBBIHERRZ230% °

FRAEBAAREAERE ZBRER
EAREEARBRELN 95% - MAKERAK
HEBRAEZRBEREAEERRBERY
81% °

BREE WEZBEALHEMBRREGE
EEMAHREARARBIEHITRALRIA L
B)RERAEEEFNAERER RHER
Z ARG T s

fmﬂ

EERNBEOAQT LRSS

I

FR ARAIEEMHBRGGER
B HERBEEARB 2 ET LEHES

80,000

AN AREBELZBES

BTN EECEETRERINE
 2FE0AEZTEERRE -

= BUR
RZZFE-—ARF=ZA=1t—H AEEEH

HBETOORES -

AEBREZMESBRAFHE B SRR
HE2NE - ERENENFIE -
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EMOLUMENT POLICY (Continued)

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an
incentive to directors and employees of the Group, details
of the schemes are set out in the paragraph headed “Share
option schemes and directors’ rights to acquire shares
or debentures” above and in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Details of the Group’s Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 20 to 24.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, the percentage of the Company’s shares in the
hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total
number of issued shares.
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AUDITOR 3 L] = —

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting ZAATFRIREAFEASIRERERER
of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche =% ¢ EEE H S :HEI{T AR A 7 2 X8

Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company. B o

On behalf of the Board REEZS

Yeung Ming Biu TE

CHAIRMAN AR

Hong Kong, 23rd June, 2016 B ZE—ARFAAZ+=H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B R BETRE

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ORIENTAL WATCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 47 to 139, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st March, 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

RAEKRITEBEFR LD T Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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BPNETERBERMANBREZFES
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as
at 31st March, 2016, and of its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23rd June, 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEBEmRHMEEKER
For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—FE-—ANEF=ZF=+—HIFE

Notes
HtaF
Turnover EERR 5
Cost of goods sold 3HE AR
Gross profit EA
Other income, gains and HaA - e K EE
losses 6
Distribution and selling DI RIHERX
expenses
Administrative expenses TR
Finance costs BLE AR 7

Share of results of associates JE{LEEE N2 ¥4

Share of results of joint BlIEE&E AR EE

ventures
(Loss) profit before taxation BT AT (E518 )% T 8
Income tax expense e X 10
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE)RF

Other comprehensive expense Hi2EMAX
Items that may be HiEAgeE 7 EE
reclassified subsequently EmsEE -
to profit or loss:
Exchange difference arising

BEBINEBESL

on translation of foreign ZEH ZRR
operations

Change in fair value of At Ee/REE
available-for-sale financial 2N EEE)

assets

Other comprehensive expense FREMhZ2EMAX
for the year

Total comprehensive expense FARNLEFH X458
for the year

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
3,031,752 3,109,031
(2,546,147) (2,590,037)
485,605 518,994
37,125 48,055
(199,533) (214,382)
(332,430) (337,958)
(6,942) (15,214)
892 631
2,566 9,524
(12,717) 9,650
(3,042) (5,317)
(15,759) 4,333
(36,337) (2,180)
(127) (4,098)
(36,464) (6,278)
(52,223) (1,945)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INC

GEEEkEMEZEIRER

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HIFE

(Loss) profit for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive expense
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

(Loss) earnings per share
Basic

Diluted

2016 2015
—E—XRF —T—hF
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
HteF FHET F&ET
AT AT EIEFEAR(E
B)aEF
ZAY/NSIET ZS DN (15,528) 4,508
FEIE MR 2 (231) (179)
(15,759) 4,333
UTALTEGZE
7 458 -
ZAN/NETEZ 2N (51,938) (1,731)
FEIE NG A 2 (285) (214)
(52,223) (1,945)
BR(EE) &
B 12 (2.72) HK centsi&fl  0.79 HK cents /&l
51 12 (2.72) HK centsi&fl  0.79 HK cents &l

RAKRTEEBRAD A Oriental Watch Holdings Limited



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R R
At 31st March, 2016
R-E-AXNF=ZF=1—H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and
equipment

Deposits for acquisition
of property, plant and
equipment

Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures

Available-for-sale financial
assets

Deferred tax assets

Property rental deposits

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Taxation recoverable
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Taxation payable
bank loans

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Non-current liabilities
bank loans
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

Notes
Kt
ERBEE
I - HES R
13
BB ~ #EZ %
RE2EE
%%QEZ%E 15
BENR) S 16
Attt EeHmEE
17
RIERIEE E 22
MERSIES
mENEE
8
B 5 M H A I BR X 18
AR O] §{ 18
IRITHEBR RIS 19
Nk =
B o5 MEMEMNERR 20
e R IE
RITER 21
mENEEFE
EELERREBEE
3EML§bﬁaﬁ§
IRITER 21
FLME%% 22
EEFE

2016 2015

S —A%
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHAT FHET
228,867 247,067
7,072 3,333
35,150 35,696
114,806 119,936
5,525 5,652

114 306
45,738 18,445
437,272 430,435
1,569,528 1,783,767
117,085 141,947
5,893 5,887
403,804 344,037
2,096,310 2,275,638
156,754 162,703
681 2,310
156,178 228,377
313,613 383,390
1,782,697 1,892,248
2,219,969 2,322,683
60,460 109,137
1,937 1,755
62,397 110,892
2,157,572 2,211,791

F — X F F#{ Annual Report 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e B S IR L R

At 31st March, 2016
R-BE-—ANF=ZF=1+—H

2016 2015
—EB-REF —T—AF
Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
HteF FHET FET

Capital and reserves BARR#RE
Share capital f& AR 23 57,061 57,061
Reserves & 2,099,457 2,153,391

Equity attributable to owners AR GIHEHE AEE#EZ

of the Company 2,156,518 2,210,452
Non-controlling interests JEE IR A 1,054 1,339
Total equity R EEE 2,157,572 2,211,791

The consolidated financial statements on pages 47 to 139 HNREATEEF 19 B 2 B8 BHERK
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of EFeRN _E—ARFAAT=H#ER
Directors on 23rd June, 2016 and are signed on its behalf HHRETZE » WA THESRARE

by:

Yeung Ming Biu Yeung Him Kit, Dennis
BERE BT
CHAIRMAN DEPUTY CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
FE Bl FEFE FLATE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

At 1st April, 2014

Exchange difference arising on
translation of foreign operations
Change in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets
Profit loss) for the year

Total comprehensive (expense income
for the year

2014 final dlvidend paid

2015 special dividend paid

2015 final dlvidend proposed

At 31st March, 2015

Exchange difference arising on
tranglation of foreign operations
Change in fair value of avallable-for-sale

financial assets
Loss for the year

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

2015 final dividend paid

2016 interim dividend paid

2016 final dividend proposed

At 31st March, 2016

HN-5-REMA-A

BEBEREE
Exzs

THEELRRE
1R

EREH(ER)

Enem(Fx Mass

m-

BRE-T-MERHRS
BRA-5-nERHRE
BR-F-nEkoRe

bl <pi

m-

RTR-RF=P=t-8

BERNZRFELL
EXZR

Tt EEHEEL

AYEES

FMER

ERRERREE
BRE=
BRCE-ERERS

R=F-nE=f=1-H

Attributable to owners of the Company

G

=

-RERARE
BREZEERERE

LN N
Share  Capital Asset Non-

Share  Share  option redemption  Capital revaluation  Special Translation Retained Dividend controlling

capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  profits  reserve Sub-total interests Total
Ba  REEE BREGE S4REER G4dE SEEGER GHRE ABBRE  REMA RERE O FERER &

HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000

At T Tér TEr FEn TR TEr TEn fEn T TEr TEr Fén

(note b) (note g)
(Witb) (Hta)

57,061 549306 83554 495 80 10098 5180 80,796 1,427,686 142 2,216,462 1553 2,218,015
- - - - - - - ) - - 214 (39 (2180
= = = = - [40%) = = = - (4008 - [40%)
- - - - - - - - 4,608 = 4508 (179 433
- - - - - [40%) - 1) 4508 - (173) 24 (1949
- - - - = = - - - (140  (142) - (149)
- - - - - - - - (8% - 28 - (285
- - - - - - - - (1426  14% - - -

57,061 549306 83,54 4% 80 6000 5180 78666 1427915 1426 2210452 1339 2,211,791
- - - - - - - (%6289 - - (36,289 (54 (36337)
- - - - - (127) - - - - (127) - (127)
- - - - - - - - (155 - (15529 (231 (15,759)
= = = = = (127) - (36283 (15529) - (61,989) (285 (62,229)
- - - - - - - - - (140 (1420 - (14%)
= = = = = = = = (570) = (570) = (670)
- - - - - - - - (140 14% - - -

57,061 549306 83554 425 80 5818 5180 42372 1410391 1426 2156518 1,054 2,157,572

—Z — X F F 3, Annual Report 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HIFE

Notes:

(a)

The special reserve of the Group comprises the difference between
the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company and
the nominal amount of the issued share capital and special reserves
of those companies which were acquired by the Group pursuant to a
group reorganisation in 1993. The special reserves of these acquired
subsidiaries represent the credit arising on reduction of their paid up
share capital under the group reorganisation.

Subsequent to I BEBIFR E 5 ik 5 B R A A (‘Li Loong”) becoming
a subsidiary of the Company in May 2013, the Group further
subscribed 6,000,000 shares of Li Loong in September 2013, for a
cash consideration of NT$60,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,698,000).
The Group’s equity interest in Li Loong increased from 90% to 96%.
This is accounted for as a deemed acquisition of additional interests
in a subsidiary and has been recognised as capital reserve.

RAKRTEEBRAD A Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

HaE -

AEEZFHRFEREARREETRAEE
EARBRBE-NN=FETEEBEMKE
ZRABEBETRAREZ ZRMAKREARZ
Bl o a2 BT IREBITE R R 2 5 Rl e
RBEEER - HIRZEFATEERRANE
&R o

RAOEBEEESROERAR(HEDE=ZZ
—=FERAARABRARZHBATE  R-F
—=F N A AEEE—FE 6,000,000 8%

EG - RENRE A A 160,000,000
($Z715,698,000/87T) - AEBEBR HEZ
B HE FH 90% 18 NN = 96% o Itk W s 2 A BRI 1E
RIERE—RMB AR ZBIMERS T DR A
BARGHEE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERETRMER

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-RF —FT—AF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Operating activities REHET
(Loss) profit before taxation BRA AT (&8 )& A (12,717) 9,650
Adjustments for: FHELATIER -
Depreciation of property, M - IR R
plant and equipment REITE 32,276 37,027
Impairment loss recognised Y - IR RERE
in respect of property, BRREEE
plant and equipment 1,325 —
Interest expense FMERX 6,942 15,214
Interest income PSRN (1,309) (2,544)
Loss (gain) on disposal HEME - #eS K
of property, plant and & BB (as)
equipment 47 (17,255)
Share of results of FE(REE N F 2
associates E (892) (631)
Share of results of joint EliEE&ERFZ
ventures E (2,566) (9,524)
Operating cash flows before LEECEHRIZ
movements in working KEBHERE
capital 23,106 31,937
Increase in property rental YEME SRS IE N
deposits (145) (3,664)
Decrease in inventories &R D 185,262 3,225
(Increase) decrease in trade 2 5 & E b E AR R (AE )
and other receivables NoRen (6,353) 3,549
Increase in trade and other B 5 N A b FE T BR 3K
payables 0 6,547 7,920
Cash from operations REXBMEAZRE 208,417 42,967
Income taxes paid AT H R 25 2 FriS #t
Income taxes paid in Hong REBAEZN 2B
Kong (2,512) (1,637)
Income taxes paid in other REMELERE T 2 e
jurisdictions (1,804) (1,615)
Net cash from operating EEBEA 2
activities R FE 204,101 39,715

—Z — X F F 3, Annual Report 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=IAN L=
GERERER
For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HIFE

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant
and equipment

Deposits paid for acquisition
of property, plant and
equipment

Repayment from a joint
venture

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal
of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale financial
assets

Net cash (used in) from
investing activities

Financing activities
Repayment of bank loans
Interest paid
Dividends paid
New bank loans raised

Net cash used in financing
activities

Net increase (decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at

the beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year,
represented by bank
balances and cash

RERS

BEYE  BEk
g
WEEM % - sl
REzefize

&L NREERE

RS
HENE  HER
B2 S O

HEAHEESREEL
1S 5KIR

BMELB(FARE)ELZ
62N %

BERD
BEBRITER
EAHE
EfRE
FEIRITE N

MERBAELZ
i 5

RehkFRHASEBZ
AR D) 58
FMZHEE M
*Wﬁiﬁﬁ
%%

FRZ\|EMFRRE
HE - ARITHERR
RBEREK

RAKRTEEBRAD A Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

2016 2015
—E—-XREF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(13,869) (11,062)
(7,072) (3,333)
6,300 35,100
1,309 2,544
- 24,713
- 5,029
(13,332) 52,991
(245,676) (392,998)
(7,429) (15,546)
(1,996) (4,279)
128,983 239,922
(126,118) (172,901)
64,651 (80,195)
344,037 425,099
(4,884) (867)
403,804 344,037




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS SRR Y &

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E-—ANF=ZF=F+—HILFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and acts as
an investment holding company as well as engaged in
watch trading. The shares of the Company are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are detailed
in the corporate information section of the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010

— 2012 cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011

— 2013 cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current or
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

—REH

ARB /R BEREEMAL 2 EEHRR
BRRAE MREERAR > IHRE
ERES - ARABRMNEBEBAR
SHARRAR (MR LW - AR
AR RE R T BE X R 2 it
HIBENFR AR ER—H

HAEMBRERIIABITZES - BITIR
RARAZNEEEE

FE R FTR] RIS B R M B ]R
SER((EBUBHREER )

REBEERANUTEESIMAE
([FEEFAE BRI BEENE
WEERZIERT

BAQIENE 195 EHEME
(B3IK) EEHK
BEAMBREERN(BITA) BANBRE LR
“E-TFF
“T-ZFy
FEYNE
BEAMBREER(BITA) BERBRE LR
—E——fZ
—T-=fFy
EENE

RAFEERBESHEHRE LR 21E
AT EHAEERAFERBAEFE
CHBRBARRRE XZELRA
MR EMEBCHEEEEREAY
@,

—ZF — XF F I, Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR M

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—FE-—ANE=ZF=F+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new or
revised standards that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments®

HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers®
HKFRS 16 Leases’

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of interests
in joint operations'

Disclosure initiative'

Clarification of acceptable methods of

depreciation and amortisation'

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer plants'

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint
venture®

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception’

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2012 — 2014 cycle'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2016.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2018.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2019.

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning
on or after 1st January, 2016.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

RAKRTEEBRAD A Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ll\li\

B RIS SRR Y i

For the year ended 31st March, 2016

BE—F

2.

—ANEZHF=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in
2010 to include requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in
2015 mainly to include a) impairment requirements
for financial assets and b) limited amendments to
the classification and measurement requirements by
introducing a ‘fair value through other comprehensive
income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for certain
simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

e All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” are subsequently
Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their
fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

2.

R REBT BERNBR
?é.;%’ﬁ.-ﬁﬂ(l’ BRMBHREER )

EBYBBEERNEIOR ST A |

ERUBERELENFIRNR=_ZZE
NERMSIEEEEREESER
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FIAIIA—ME R SEEZFRE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me

B 5 S AR M R

For the year ended 31st March, 2016

BE—F

—NE=ZHF=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

RAERTHE

With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change
in the fair value of the financial liability designated
as fair value through profit or loss was presented
in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses
and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

[® & R 2 & Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S AR B aE

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E-—ANF=ZF=F+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

° The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting.
However, greater flexibility has been introduced
to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting.
In addition, the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with the principle of an
‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an
entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The directors of the Company are in the process of
assessing the impact on the application of HKFRS 9.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect until detailed review has been
completed.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR M E

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE-—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: ldentify the performance obligations in
the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company will assess the impact
of the application of HKFRS 15. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed
review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E-—ANF=ZF=F+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases”, introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term
of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is
of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is
required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing
its right to use the underlying leased asset and a
lease liability representing its obligation to make lease
payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on
the lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments
of the lease liability into a principal portion and an
interest portion and presents them in the statement
of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the
lease liability are initially measured on a present value
basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable
lease payments and also includes payments to be
made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend the lease, or
not to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This
accounting treatment is significantly different from
the lessee accounting for leases that are classified
as operating leases under the predecessor standard,
HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

The directors of the Company will assess the impact
of the application of HKFRS 16. For the moment, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of the application of HKFRS 16 until the Group
performs a detailed review.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE-—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the results and the financial
position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap 622) regarding preparation of accounts
and directors’ reports and audits became effective for
the Company for the financial year ended 31st March,
2016. Further, the disclosure requirements set out
in the Listing Rules regarding annual accounts have
been amended with reference to the new CO and to
streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation
and disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2016 have been changed to comply with
these new requirements. Comparative information
in respect of the financial year ended 31st March,
2015 are presented or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements based on the new requirements.
Information previously required to be disclosed under
the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not under the
new CO or amended Listing Rules are not disclosed in
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i B R AR B A

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E-—ANF=ZF=F+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of the reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or
value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE-—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E-—ANF=ZF=F+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations” are measured in accordance with that
standard.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E-—ANF=ZF=F+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of associates and joint ventures is described
below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and
joint ventures are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate or joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an
associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
“Impairment of assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method
from the date when the investment ceases to be an
associate or a joint venture, or when the investment
is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains
an interest in the former associate or joint venture and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition in accordance with HKAS 39.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture at the date the equity method
was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part
interest in the associate or joint venture is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of
the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate or
joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when
an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues
to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest
if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or a joint venture of the Group (such as a sale or
contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

& BR A A Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E-—ANF=ZF=F+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

Watch repair service income is recognised when
services are provided.

Show window rental income is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant rental agreement.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
land and buildings held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose
of lease classification. To the extent the allocation of
the lease payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as ‘prepaid lease payments’ in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is classified as a finance lease and accounted for
as property, plant and equipment.

The cost of leasehold land and buildings is depreciated
using the straight-line method over the shorter of the
period of the lease or over their estimated useful lives
of 20 years for those located in Mainland China (the
“PRC”) or 50 years for those located in Hong Kong.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of other items of property, plant and equipment less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the reducing balance method, at the rate of 20%
per annum. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

RAEKRITEBEFR LD T Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E-—ANF=ZF=F+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

[® & R 2 & Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E-—ANF=ZF=F+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in its functional currency, i.e. the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates, at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rate prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rate for the period,
unless exchange rate fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs not attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “(loss) profit before
taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

[® & R 2 & Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories, which are finished goods held for sale, are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated on a specific identification basis. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
two categories, including loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

[® & R 2 & Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including amount
due from a joint venture, trade and other receivables
and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in asset revaluation reserve, until the
financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the asset revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016

BE—F

3.

—ANEZHF=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the credit period granted, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade or other receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016

BE—F

3.

RAERTHE

—NE=ZHF=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments previously recognised in profit or loss
are not be reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in asset revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

[® & R 2 & Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E-—ANF=ZF=F+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and bank loans are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE-—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract
at the higher of: (i) the amount of obligation under the
contract, as determined in accordance with HKAS
37 “Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets”; and (i) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the revenue recognition policy.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E-—ANF=ZF=F+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes, including Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
and the employee’s pension scheme of the respective
municipal governments in various places in the PRC
where the Group operates, are charged as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the grant date is recognised as an expense in full at
the grant date when the share options granted vest
immediately with a corresponding increase in equity
(share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in the share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or
services are measured at the fair values of the goods
or services received, unless that fair value cannot be
reliably measured, in which case the goods or services
received are measured by reference to the fair value of
the share options granted. The fair values of the goods
or services received are recognised as expenses,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve), when the Group obtains the goods or when
the counterparties render services, unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE-—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

4.

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following is the key assumption concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Allowance for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aged
analysis at the end of each reporting period, and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items identified that are no long suitable for sales. The
management estimates that the net realisable value
for such finished goods based primarily on the latest
invoice prices and current market conditions. Where the
net realisable value is less than the carrying amount,
impairment loss may arise. As at 31st March 2016, the
carrying amount of inventories is HK$1,569,528,000
(2015: HK$1,783,767,000).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operation is principally sales of watches.
The Group’s turnover represents consideration received
or receivable from sales of watches.

The Group has two operating segments, which are
analysed based on geographical markets of the goods
sold, being (a) Hong Kong, and (b) Taiwan, Macau
and the PRC, which is also the basis of organisation
of the Group for managing the business operations.
The Group determines its operating segments based
on the internal reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker, being the Managing Director of the
Group, that are used to allocate resources and assess
performance. No operating segments identified by the
chief operating decision maker have been aggregated
in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. pHERE)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s segment INTAAEEZREEDFE D 293
revenue and results by operating segments. Wt REEDHT ©
Segment revenue Segment profit (loss)
palidl & D EBE R (EE)

2016 2015 2016 2015
Nl — T 15 st — T hLF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET FET FET

Hong Kong E}% 2,245,293 2,185,609 28,361 28,287
Taiwan, Macau =0l

and the PRC KA E 786,459 923,422 (16,919) (13,657)

3,031,752 3,109,031 11,442 14,630

Unallocated other ko2 H g A

income 4,509 20,897
Unallocated KA ARFAL

corporate

expenses (25,184) (20,818)
Finance costs BLE AR (6,942) (15,214)
Share of results of E{GEZ N A Z

associates E 892 631
Share of results of EHAZRAZ

joint ventures E 2,566 9,524
(Loss) profit bR AT (EE)

before taxation v Al (12,717) 9,650
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE-—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The accounting policies used to determine segment
revenue and results are the same as the accounting
policies adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements described in note 3. Segment
profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of finance costs, share of results
of associates and joint ventures and unallocated
other income and expenses. Unallocated expenses
include auditor’s remuneration, directors’ emoluments,
exchange loss and operating expenses of inactive
companies. This is the measure reported to the
Managing Director of the Group for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment.

The Group has no customer who contributed over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group for any of the two
years ended 31st March, 2016.

All segment revenue is generated from external
customers for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—FE-—ANEF=ZF=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by operating segments.

5. DEERGE)

AT RAEERE

BEBEDN -

Segment assets

ENHREDZEE

Segment liabilities

PEHEE DEPEME
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RF —hF e —hF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Hong Kong %.5;‘% 1,246,569 1,831 557 110,768 91,474
Taiwan, Macau =
and the PRC &‘:F'. 721,173 862,317 44,801 61,185
Segment total poR:iT by 1,967,742 2,193,874 155,569 152,659
Unallocated F Al 565,840 512,199 220,441 341,623
Group’s total REB B 2,533,582 2,706,073 376,010 494,282
The segment assets by location of assets are the same REEMEMEID 2 HEBEEHRIRT
as by location of markets of the goods sold. EEmMBZMEEIHERR -
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance ?JE%ES’?-‘?’ HRFEERDEEDEER

and allocating resources between segments:

all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than interests in associates and joint
ventures, available-for-sale financial assets,
deferred tax assets, amount due from a joint
venture, taxation recoverable as well as assets of
the headquarters and bank balances and cash;
and

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than taxation payable, deferred tax liabilities
and bank loans as well as other payables of
the headquarters. Bank loans are classified as
unallocated corporate liabilities because they are
managed centrally by the treasury function of the
Group.

BREtERRIRAE AR 2 E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. DHERGE)
Other segment information Hihn BER
Amounts included in the measure of segment results or ESMEEXNEEEMBREZS
segment assets: 2E

Loss (gain) on disposal Increase (decrease) in

Additions of property, of property, plant and non-current property
plant and equipment Depreciation equipment rental deposits
HENE  BER FRaNERS

RENE  BERRE il ] R 2 BR (K BERM(HY)

2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2015
ZE-1% LAl CT-1E bRl CT-1F “E-1%
GO HKS'000 WEICXOM  HKS$000 HK$'000 HK§'000
AT FEn AL FEn AT AT
Hong Kong B 580 351 1446 16546 o (7258 ;M2 (21229)
Taiwan, Macauand 8%+ BMR
the PRC i 11,373 8,041 17,693 20,310 - - (49) 2,745
Segment total D 17,202 11,592 32,139 36,856 47 (17,255) 21,293  (18,480)
Unallocated oK - - 137 171 - — - -
Group's total AEER 17,202 11,592 32,276 37,027 47 (17,255) 21,293  (18,480)
Information about the Group’s non-current assets REEMEME D 2 AKEERBE
(excluding available-for-sale financial assets, deferred EMTEEAHEEemEE B
tax assets, property rental deposits, amount due from mlﬁﬁé MEHRESES  BRESE
a joint venture and interests in associates and joint NAIFENARREE AR REE QA
ventures) by geographical location of the assets is 2R ) 2 BRI
detailed below:
Carrying amount of
non-current assets
FREBEEZREE
2016 2015
—E-KF —ET-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Hong Kong Eib 193,334 199,845
Taiwan, Macau and the PRC aE  RFIRFE 42,605 50,555
235,939 250,400
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

6. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

Show window rental income

Refund of rental expense

Repairing service income

(Loss) gain on disposal of
property, plant and equipment

Interest income

Exchange (loss) gain

Others

7. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank borrowings

Ho—

6. HAMWA - WaKkEE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FET
1 7 FH & U A 22,489 21,525
REMSHAX 8,880 —
#IE RIS U A 1,487 1,716

HEME  HBERREZ
(E1E) k= (47) 17,255
B UA 1,309 2 544
& 5 (EE) ke (3,300) 163
HA 6,307 4,852
37,125 48,055

7. BERAK

2016 2015
—E-XRF “T—hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
RITEEZFE 6,942 15,214

—Z — X F F I, Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HIFE

8. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. BR®iAI(SE)=EF

2016 2015
—E—-RXE —“E—ARF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET

(Loss) profit before taxation has B %% AT (&8 ) % 7
been arrived at after charging: BBk :

Directors’ remuneration (note 9) EZ=M& (#1719) 15,694 18,049
Other staff's retirement benefits ~ Efb Bk 8 7 R IKt& M ET 2]

scheme contributions HK 5,249 7,562
Other staff costs H b B B AR 82,659 85,282
Total staff costs BB A MRER 103,602 110,893
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B AT B & 2,780 2,780
Depreciation of property, plant W% - eSS RRETE

and equipment 32,276 37,027

Impairment loss recognised in MIE - WSS RREER
respect of property, plant and < BEEE

equipment 1,325 —
Operating lease rentals in respect B EYE 2 KLHE
of rented premises e 226,570 224,329
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

9.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for
the year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable listing
rule and Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2015:
nine) directors were as follows:

2016
285

Retirement  Performance-

Salaries benefits related
and other scheme  incentive
Fees benefits ~ contributions bonus

BeR  BMRN  RRMR

Be  REEW  GERR  RERL
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000
fé&x B B T

9.

EEkEEZME

EERTBAREZAFEMETIRE
ERLETRAREBABRBGRPIHKE
BENKERNE(ZE—RF : L&)

EEZAZHERAT -
2015
3Bk
Retirement  Performance-
Salaries benefits related
and other seheme Incentive
Fees benefits  contributions bonus Total

FeR BEA XBEE
BE  REEH SR 2R 53t
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HK$000
AL TEr BT TET TER

(note) (note)
2 (W)
Evecutive directors L
Dr. Yeung Ming Biu BRERT - 3,381 312 - 3,693 - 3,43 459 Y] 3,936
M. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis 478564 - 3,186 4 - 3,609 = 3724 193 1) 4189
Mr. Fung Kwong Yiu BERRE - 2,436 229 - 2,665 - 3017 335 4 3,394
Madam Yeung Man Yee,  B&ERL
Shirley - 97 108 - 905 - 97 108 Y] 947
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain HEgEE - 1,759 29 - 1,998 - 2,347 239 Y] 2,628
Mr. Choi Kwok Yum EEYGE - 2,014 210 - 2,204 - 2,108 210 Y] 2415
ndependent non-executve  B3ERTER
directors
Dr. Sun Ping Hou, Samson &R L 180 - - - 180 180 - - - 180
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy 1ABRT 180 - - - 180 180 - - - 180
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael ~ Z3uHi44 180 - - - 180 180 - - - 180
540 13,578 1,581 - 15,604 540 15,423 1,834 252 18,049

Note: The performance-related incentive bonus is determined as a
percentage of the profit for the year before bonus charge.

All the five highest paid employees of the Group were
executive directors of the Company. Details of their
emoluments are disclosed above.

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis, is also the Chief Executive
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive.

Hiat - RIABRIREIEAL TR ACAL AT A
BHZFE—BDLLMEE °

AEBRUKRSHFMERYSA AR
WITES - WEZMEFER LXH

= o
BITEESEE TR AN R R ZITHAREL

EXFAEERN B REERTH
RERHIRE < ME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HIFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EBERESEZME )
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above EYFESTTEEMEe T ERTEEE
were mainly for their services in connection with the BARRIRAEEEBMER 2R
management of the affairs of the Company and the Mo EXFEHINITESRE L
Group. The emoluments of non-executive directors and FMTESFTHEEIERKFEEILA
independent non-executive directors and independent RIEEMRHZ BB M

non-executive directors shown above were mainly for
their services as directors’ of the Company.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the FR - AEBTERAMNZSHMA
Group to the five highest paid individuals (including T(REEERES) X NEMME
directors and employees) as an inducement to join EAMAREB I IMAREEEZ 2 &R
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for Pk BEERF(E - FABIBESWNET
loss of office. None of the directors has waived any A& o

emoluments during the year.

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRIEHAX
2016 2015
—B-RF —T-hF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET
The charge comprises: T HBE

Hong Kong Profits Tax BENE 2,409 4,067

Under(over)provision in prior years @1 & E &1 2 (HBRE R
) 8 (444)
2,417 3,623
Taxation in other jurisdictions Hfbal AR BiIE 696 2,381
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBEREE (432) (1,085)
264 1,296
Deferred taxation (note 22) BIETRIE(f it 22) 361 398
3,042 5,317
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS SRR Y &

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FREBIF X (&)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the EBFERIBEMEFE 25T E

estimated assessable profits for both years.

E o FHE R 2 B T RS A D
BRSBTS -

Taxation in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations.

RIBCRBECEMRFIBENEEME
BOE D) RS EFRFBOEB IR -
FEIKEARZHER26% °

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

AFEEHBEIHUTHEBEGEBER R
BEmemlam®k 2RI A(EE) &
HERIAT -

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to
the (loss) profit before taxation per the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as follows:

2016 2015
—EB-RF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
(Loss) profit before taxation BB AT (&8 )& (12,717) 9,650
Tax at the applicable income tax RIEFEAFIEHE 16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) “T—HF 16.5%)
HE 7 HIA (2,098) 1,592
Tax effect of share of results of JEIEEEE NI EE 2
associates MG (147) (104)
Tax effect of share of results of [EBIEAEERRIZEEZ
joint ventures MG E (423) (1,571)
Tax effect of expenses not A HRAY 2 HIGHE
deductible for tax purposes 966 2,280
Tax effect of income not taxable HBARRWA 2 FHIETLE
for tax purposes (98) (3,141)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERTIEER 2 M7
recognised 5,092 7,682
Effect of different tax rates of RE A AR & &
subsidiaries operating in other M A R A A
jurisdictions ME 2B 104 (317)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEHEBREE (424) (1,529)
Others A 70 525
Tax charge for the year REFZHIEZ H 3,042 5,317

—Z — X F F 3, Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR M

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HIFE

11. DIVIDENDS

Dividends recognised as
distribution during the year:
Interim dividend for financial

year ended 31st March, 2016
of 0.1 HK cents (special
dividend for financial year
ended 31st March, 2015:

0.5 HK cents) per share

on 570,610,224 (2015:
570,610,224) shares

Final dividend for financial year
ended 31st March, 2015
of 0.25 HK cents (financial
year ended 31st March,
2014: 0.25 HK cents) per
share on 570,610,224 (2014:
570,610,224) shares

Dividend proposed after year

end:

Proposed final dividend
for financial year ended
31st March, 2016 of 0.25
HK cents (financial year
ended 31st March, 2015:
0.25 HK cents) per share
on 570,610,224 (2015:
570,610,224) shares

1. BB

2016
—EB—-XE

HK$’000
TET

FRAEHRRDIKLZ

e

570,610,224 (=&
—TFF : 570,610,224
BOBRAEZHE-ZF
—R"F=ZA=+—H
LIEBE R R ERR B
FRoABW(EHEZ=
TE-—RF=A=1+—
HIE R FE R R
B 1 0.5%) 570

570,610,224 (=&
—PO4 : 570,610,224
BIBRFEZHE-Z
—hRF=A=+—H
IEHEF R R AR B
BRR0.25B(H=E
—E—MFE=A
=t+—BIBBE

€ : 0.25%1l) 1,426

2015
—E—RF
HK$’000
FET

2,853

1,426

1,996

4,279

FREBKZE

570,610,224 (==&
—FF 570,610,224
BOBRETEZ2HEZ
F-ANFZA=+—
B BEFEE KA
HARR B A% 0.25 7L
(Bz-_Z2—R%=H
=t+—BIHEBRFE :

0.25%1ll)

A final dividend of 0.25 HK cents (2015: 0.25 HK
cents) per share has been proposed by the directors
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

12. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. B8R (EHE)EF
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings KARIBEEARBEERERALE S
per share attributable to owners of the Company is (B8 BRI TR B A T 8B E -

based on the following data:

2016 2015
—E-REF —E-hF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(Loss) earnings (EEB)EF
(Loss) earnings for the purposes st B &RREAR K #E
of basic and diluted (loss) (B8E)&aFNz (BE)
earnings per share ((loss) profit ~ BF(AATESE A
for the year attributable to EEEA(ER)RHN)
owners of the Company) (15,528) 4,508
2015
—E-hF
‘000
Fh
Number of shares R EE
Number of ordinary shares for AEERER(ER)RA
the purpose of basic (loss) 2 EBRER
earnings per share 570,610 570,610
Effect of dilutive potential BEEELTBR
ordinary shares T
— share options — FEpRE — —
Number of ordinary shares for AESREE(BE)RA
the purpose of diluted (loss) 2 ERREAE
earnings per share 570,610 570,610
The diluted (loss) earnings per share for both years MEEE 2 Bi8#EE (FEi8) B X I =
has not included the effect from the Company’s share BENNFEREZE TR
options because the exercise prices of the share B 2 TEEERANA RN 2 F
options are higher than the average market price of the HHE -

shares of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMIEHR M
For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE-—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y3 - HERKRE

Leasehold Furniture,
land and fixtures and Motor
buildings  equipment vehicles Total
HE &R-£EB
T REF S ET ] "E &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
COST BE:N
At 1st April, 2014 R-ZZE—DNFMHA—H 195,605 258,361 3,359 457,325
Exchange adjustment  [& 5 5% (29) (322) - (351)
Additions NE = 11,386 206 11,592
Disposals HE (8,186) (7,974) - (16,160)
At 31st March, 2015  R-E—-RE=A=+—H 187,390 261,451 3,565 452,406
Exchange adjustment [} A% (1,321) (5,543) — (6,864)
Additions NE — 17,202 — 17,202
Disposals HE - (11,804) - (11,804)
At 31st March, 2016 RZE—R"F=ZA=1+—H 186,069 261,306 3,565 450,940
DEPRECIATION e
At 1st April, 2014 R-ZZE—mOFEMA—H 25,861 149,827 1,458 177,146
Exchange adjustment & 5 3% (11) (121) - (132)
Provided for the year — ANFEEfE 4,132 32,525 370 37,027
Eliminated on disposals & B 4 (1,293) (7,409) - (8,702)
At 31st March, 2015 RZE—RF=A=1+—H 28,689 174,822 1,828 205,339
Exchange adjustment & & F§% (551) (4,559) — (5,110)
Provided for the year —~ RNEFEE B 4,055 27,904 317 32,276
Impairment loss RERER R ERBE
recognised in profit
or loss — 1,325 — 1,325
Eliminated on disposals & s #fi §5 - (11,757) - (11,757)
At 31st March, 2016 RZZE—A~F=A=1+—H 32,193 187,735 2,145 222,078
CARRYING VALUES  BRE{E
At 31st March, 2016 R-ZE—R"E=A=1+—H 153,876 73,571 1,420 228,867
At 31st March, 2015 R-ZE—HFE=RA=+—H 158,701 86,629 1,737 247,067

RAEKRITEBEFR LD T Oriental Watch Holdings Limited




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS SRR Y &

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Owner-occupied leasehold land located in Hong
Kong and the PRC is included in property, plant and
equipment because the allocation between the land
portion and building portion cannot be made reliably.

The carrying value of property V¥ REERE :

comprises:

Properties located in: PIEALR
Hong Kong BB
PRC Gy

During the year ended 31st March, 2016, the
directors conducted a review of the Group’s assets
and determined that the assets of a subsidiary were
impaired because it is expected that these assets will
not generate future benefit to the Group. Accordingly,
impairment loss of HK$1,325,000 (2015: nil) has been
recognised in respect of those assets.

13. W% - WBRRE#E)

ERURBELTEZEEEAEE
Tz I ERMD RABF #B (0 T RE Rl 52
wEn  MEETERBEELHIIEA
MR - R o

2016 2015
—E—REF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

140,365 143,196
13,511 15,505
153,876 158,701

BHE_ZT—XRF=A=+—HItF
B ESHASKEZEEETRNE
BT HWBARIZEES RE -
RIEHZEEERTERASEEAL
KRBz At - AR FEERR
RE B %1,325,0008 (= E—H
F:E)e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS AR MY o

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE-—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

14. GOODWILL 14. 58
HK$’000
FRET
COST [Z%:N
At 1st April, 2014, 31st March, 2015 and 2016 R-Z—WNFMA—H -
—hERZZE-RF
=A=+—H 1,623
IMPAIRMENT HE
At 1st April, 2014, 31st March, 2015 and 2016 R=-Z—WHFMA—H -
—RFRZZE—RF
=HA=+—H 1,623
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31st March, 2016 and 2015 RZF-AFRZF—HF
—A=+—H —
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has MBEARANS  BEESEERS
been allocated to a cash generating unit (“CGU”) EXBM([ReEEEN])  BE—
comprising one subsidiary in watch trading. MFHEEHE 2 MBAR] -
The recoverable amount of the relevant CGU has been el Fafﬁiﬁiﬁuz—ﬂ&@ > 58 iR
determined on the basis of value in use calculation. FHREETEEE o fEREBEE
The key assumptions for the value in use calculation éZ?ﬁﬁI%ﬁ’jﬁEfﬁT’ BERK
are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates TEHW R B R BERANEEK AR
and expected changes to revenue and direct costs o BEEEFAMAIL R
during the budget period. The management estimates X MZMAIEEREEEFREER
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current ZEBRmsHERZEEELEEMN
market assessments of the time value of money and BERR - Wk EEKANZEE) T
the risks specific to the CGU. Changes in revenue BEE DA K $ 35 R R & 2 T8 H
and direct costs are based on past practices and REAE -
expectations of future changes in the market.
During the year ended 31st March, 2014, the REE-ZZT—NF=A=+—HLF
Group recognised impairment loss in profit or loss € BRKEEBRZMBARIRK
of HK$1,623,000 due to the operating loss and the AR PMEEN  ARERERE
uncertainty of future prospects of the subsidiary. R EEE 1,623,000 7T °

RAEKRITEBEFR LD T Oriental Watch Holdings Limited



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 15. BEE DN F 2 RS

2016 2015
—E-REF —“E2—A0F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET

Cost of investments in unlisted RIEEMEtERNA 2K E

associates BN 30,201 30,201
Exchange adjustment DEE 5 5B (3,405) (1,967)
Share of post-acquisition profits  fE{H UK & 12 2 & Fl 8,354 7,462

35,150 35,696
Included in the cost of investments is goodwill of AR E KR 2 72 14,144,000 7 TT
HK$14,144,000 (2015: HK$14,738,000) arising on (ZZ—F%F : 14,738,000/87T) 5K B K
acquisition of associates. e g/ I
Details of the Group’s associates at 31st March, 2016 REFBEATR_ZE—RFLR=ZF
and 2015 are as follows: —RAFE=A=1+—HZFEBEWT :
Place of
incorporation Proportion of Proportion of Principal
Name of associate and operation ownership interest voting power held activity
AR S ]
BERNTRER EENH FrERERLH REZRERLH TEER
2016 2015 2016 2015
SN T EEE Lyl —T-AF
NFEERHERAF Taiwan 40% 40% 40% 40% Watch trading
AFEERHBRAT Taiwan 40% 40% 40% 40% Watch trading
AEERR N BRAT Taiwan 40% 40% 40% 40% Watch trading
=) FRICH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e e |

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HIFE

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 15. BFE N B 2= (F)
YHBERUEAZHE AT ZEHER

Aggregate information of associates that are not
individually material

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—T0fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET

The Group’s share of profit and ~ AEBEEEGEH LK EME

total comprehensive income W58 892 631
Aggregate carrying amount of REERZEBEQRZ

the Group’s interests in these EFEREE

associates 35,150 35,696

16. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

104

RAKRTEEBRAD A Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

Cost of investments in unlisted
joint ventures

Exchange adjustment

Share of post-acquisition profits

Amount due from a joint venture

(note a)

RIFELHEE

FE5 W B 1R 25

EI—R A ERRIZFIA

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—FRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAETT FET
21,807 21,807
(588) 808
22,248 19,682
43,467 42,297
71,339 77,639
114,806 119,936




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E-—ANF=ZF=F+—HILFE

16. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(Continued)
Details of the Group’s joint ventures at 31st March,
2016 and 2015 are as follows:
Place of Proportion
incorporation of ownership
Name of joint venture and operation interest
& i AR 3L B Fr
EERATEE EE R FE 2 b I
BEREXEERERAA The PRC 40%
(“Huimei”) H
EREBHRARAA] Macau 45%
(“Hei Tung”) B P
Notes:

(a) The amount, which is due from Hei Tung, is unsecured,
interest free and has no fixed repayment term. During the
year, the Group has received repayment of amount due from
a joint venture, Hei Tung, amounting HK$6,300,000. The
Group expects that the remaining amount would not be settled
within twelve months from the end of the reporting period and
therefore classifies the amount as a non-current asset.

(b)  The Group holds 40% of the paid-in capital of Huimei. Huimei
is jointly controlled by the Group and the other significant
equity owner by virtue of contractual arrangements among
equity owners. Therefore, Huimei is classified as a joint venture
of the Group.

() The Group holds 45% of the paid-in capital of equity owners
Hei Tung. Hei Tung is jointly controlled by the Group and
the other significant equity owner by virtue of contractual
arrangements between the two equity owners. Therefore, Hei
Tung is classified as a joint venture of the Group.

Included in the cost of investments is goodwill of
HK$4,070,000 (2015: HK$4,147,000) arising on
acquisition of Huimei during the year ended 31st
March, 2012.

16.

EERNTZERE)
KEBAL NN -_E—XNER_-ZT
—AFZ A=+ —BZHENT

Proportion

of voting power Principal

held activity

BFEZRE

AL ) Ty

40% Watch trading

(note b) (K1z#b)

45%

(note c) (Btatc)

Watch trading

Hiat -

(@)

ERWERZREAEERA 28 B
TEBRTERP TR AEEE K
HAEAREREEZRE ¢85
6,300,000/ 7T ° A& B TE Hi gk T 3B
BREFRERBTF T _EARBE
bt BN DEAERBEE -

AEBRAEZEHRAZ40% - EX
HEMEES AZBRISL 2 & =M
EAEEE S —RAEREA AKRES -
Hit - EXDBERAEBZE2RAF -

AEBBBFEERREREATHEREAZ
45% - EREMBREHER A ZBEIL
ZENZHEMZASEEES — 5 AR
A ALRES - At ERHEAAN

SEZAERT -

T AR E KA 2 B2 4,070,0007% 7T

—T—FRF 4,147,000/ TT) KB
BE T —H=—A=1+—HILFE
WU IESE -

—ZF — XF F I, Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B 2R Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HIFE

16. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(Continued)

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are
not individually material

16. E& DR 2= (2)

-

YHBHERZEE QAR ZEER

The Group’s share of profit and  ZN& B (L% F & 2 m Uk

total comprehensive income mAARE

e

Aggregate carrying amount of the RNEBERZES LA

Group’s interests in these joint AFTEREE
ventures

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

Listed investments EHEE
Equity securities listed in BB L2 RAES
Hong Kong (note a) (Htita)
Unlisted investments JELTIRE
Managed fund portfolio (note b) EBEEESREHESE
(Kiatb)

RAEKRITEBEFR LD T Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

2016 2015
— —F-AF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
2,566 9,524
Az
43,467 42,297
17. It HEESRMEE
2016 2015
—E-AF —T-IfF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FiET FET
93 99
5,432 5,553
5,525 5,652




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —
e B IS SRR Y &

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 17. AIHEESREE#)

ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: Kiaz:

(a) At the end of the reporting period, all the equity securities (a) SRR MEBHB LTRAESFY
listed in Hong Kong are stated at fair values, which have been NEBEAR  MATFED2RBIERET
determined with reference to quoted bid prices in an active i%ﬁﬁiﬁZ%?)\Eﬁﬁﬁéﬁ? o
market.

(o)  The managed fund portfolio as at 31st March, 2016 and 31st ) RZT—R"F=ZA=+—HE=Z
March, 2015 comprises of unlisted investments. The fund is F=RA=4+— EZF‘IE%@&%ZE
stated at fair value with reference to the quoted market prices FEIEETIRE - %%EW%%{’EEWE
provided by brokers which are financial institutions. e REEMER s TSRERATE

HIER o
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B 5 R H Mt B ARRX
2016 2015
= —T-AF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Trade receivables B 5 EKRR 88,852 86,120
Receivable from a joint venture  EWR—FEIEZE QB ZER
(note) (K1at) 5,185 2,637
Property rental and utilities mERe R AAREES
deposits 16,530 43,678

Advances to other suppliers ) L i (2 B R EA K 489 1,117

VAT recoverable Al [El 2 S E T 2,610 2,849

Other receivables H i fE WBR SR 3,419 5,546

117,085 141,947

Note: The amount represents reimbursements receivable from a joint Wit R ERERE - ERELHERER—HEE

venture under a procurement arrangement (see note 32 (a)). BRI ZRR(RHES32@)) °
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18.

B IR R M

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HIFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The Group maintains a general credit policy of not
more than 30 days for its wholesales customers. Sales
made to retail customers are made on a cash basis.
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:

Age AR

0 to 30 days 0Z30H

31 to 60 days 31260H
61 to 90 days 61290 H
Over 90 days 90 HIA E

About 97% (2015: 95%) of the trade receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired are recovered within
one month after the end of the reporting period. No
provision has been made for trade receivables for both
years.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances
are debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$2,979,000 (2015: HK$4,447,000) which are past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The average age of
these receivables is 60 days (2015: 40 days).

RAKRTEEBRAD A Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

18. EZ R EMEWIRR(Z)

AEEHEMBEFEITTHEIBEI0H
Z—MRIEBBR - TERFHE MU
ReET U TREFEBERRE
REARIZBEZEHE Z BRI AT ¢

2016 2015
—E—XKE —F-hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
85,873 81,673
1,158 3,652

180 5

1,641 790
88,852 86,120

R ERRELE S EBERZRF K
H97% (ZZF—AHF : 95%) N 23R
Keg—EARKE - FW1EFEHER
B S EWARRE B -

AEBEZERBEREHRERERE
#{E2,979,0008 T(ZF — A F -
4,447,000 7T ) 2 FEWBRFK - ZE5E
WERREFRBEBHAEREBENR
ELREEBRE -  AEENELZ
%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%&?ﬁﬂuﬂu o ZE AR
RZFEHYERRKRABOBR(ZE—RHEF -
40H)
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B IR R M

For the year ended 31st March, 2016

BE—F

18.

19.

—ANF=ZF=F—HIFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due
but not impaired

31 to 60 days 31£260H
61 to 90 days 61290 H
Over 90 days 90 B k£

The Group will provide fully for any receivables over
365 days because historical experience is such that
receivables that are past due beyond 365 days are
generally not recoverable.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties and customers.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less at variable interest
rates ranging from 0.01% to 1.10% (2015: 0.01% to
1.20%) per annum.

18.

19.

B2 REAMEBWIRR (&)

EEMEREZE S ERRRZ &
e

2016 2015
—E-XEF E—FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,158 3,652

180 B

1,641 790
2,979 4,447

74 45 B 46 3t £ T 1 50 B3 365 ) 2 8
W BR AR M 2 BB - R RIS
5 B8 365 B 2 FEME B — AR
A -

AEBYESAEERAREFER
EERBRIBRZEARGHTFRE
E o

ﬁ?('f‘.l'mnﬁ%&iﬁﬁ

fETT ER R EASEMBFERS

REBBE A=A TIEIZRF
Eﬁiﬂ N F0.01%E1.10% (==
—HEFE 0.01%E1.20%):t B 2 &
HASRITIZ 3K o
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HIFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables B I REMNER

Payroll and welfare payables B TE REF
Commission payables i ANk

Advances from customers EPEEMNK
Renovation work payables FERT 83T TIZAR X
VAT and other taxes payables FERTIGE R K B A B IR
Advertising fee payables EREEE

Interest payables FEAH A B

Property rental fee payables EYEREE R
Other payables H th FE AR 5K

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

Age AR

0 to 60 days 02 60H

61 to 90 days 61290 H
Over 90 days 90 B £

110 R B KR 1T5%E E B R 2L 7 Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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20. E5 K EMENIRR

2016 2015
—E—XRF —T—hF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET
102,881 97,075
6,638 7,395
4,328 2,647
12,611 20,293
3,163 2,199
8,631 12,045
3,666 2,568
208 695
7,425 493
7,203 7,293
156,754 152,703

AT RE S RMERN 2RI RIRE

SR ZARE DT

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—T1fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAETT FET
91,816 87,890
127 645
10,938 8,540
102,881 97,075
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

21. BANK LOANS 21. SRITER

The bank loans are repayable SRITERAERIAT HR
as follows (based on the EE(REER W=

scheduled repayment dates set FrEzFEFERH)
out in the loan agreements):

Within one year —F A

More than one year but not —FREMEAN
exceeding two years

More than two years but not MERERFR
exceeding five years

More than five years hFE

Comprising: BIE

Amount due within one year R—FEREIH 2 ZI8
shown under current liabilities (P BREEE)

Amount that are not repayable BAEREHPRET
within one year from the end —FAEEERSK
of the reporting period but ERERIERZ A
containing a repayment on (G ERBERE)

demand clause (shown under
current liabilities)

Total amount shown under PAREIBEL
current liabilities IR
Amount shown under non- PRIEREBBEL
current liabilities IR
Analysed as: PakiI= T
Secured B
Unsecured 4K 1

At 31st March, 2016, the Group pledged certain
leasehold land and buildings with an aggregate carrying
value of HK$93,654,000 (2015: HK$95,968,000) to
banks to secure bank loan facilities granted to the
Group.

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

138,511 206,710
64,460 95,754
12,000 29,383

1,667 5,667

216,638 337,614

138,511 206,710
17,667 21,667

156,178 228,377
60,460 109,137

216,638 337,514
21,667 95,111

194,971 242,403

216,638 337,514

MR-B—-RE=A=+—H0 '  A&H
B A 88 17 K 3 48 BR T {8 /5 93,654,000
BIL(—ZT— R 4F : 95,968,000/8 7T )
ZETHELTWRETF  UEALE
EERBITERME 2T -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HIFE

21. BANK LOANS (Continued) 21. VRITERKE)
All bank loans carrying interest at variable rates, FIBERITERSRIBNEGTE - B
comprising: =

Effective interest rate
per annum

BRFRN=R

2016 2015
—E-RF —ET—RF

Loans carrying interest at: EFUR A TR R B -
— Hong Kong Interbank — BARTRAERE
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus ([ EBRITRZELR
1.80% per annum B INERNZE1.80% 2.19% 2.19%
— HIBOR plus 1.25% per — BARITREFREM N/A
annum FHEA.25% FEH 2.29%
— the People’s Bank of China — FEARBITEESF
benchmark interest rate per I =
annum 5.63% 5.60%
— HIBOR plus 2.5% per — BABRITRFEFRE N N/A
annum FHMZE2.5% TEA 2.74%
— Bank’s cost of funding plus — RITRAE ACAS N
1.75% per annum FHE1.75% 2.54% 2.54%
— Bank’s cost of funding plus — RITEE AN N/A
1.50% per annum FFIE1.50% 2.54% NiE A
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the REFRPAR - AEBEHE U T RIEIRE
following undrawn short-term borrowing facilities: HEERE -
2016 2015
—E-XF —T—AF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Variable rates N
Expiring within one year R—FERNEE 1,066,357 909,637
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BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

22. DEFERRED TAXATION 22, EIEBIE
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax T RAEVEZ2HmELERIBER
balances for financial reporting purposes: ST -
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—REF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets EEHIEEE 114 306
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEAE (1,937) (1,755)
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) NTRAFERNTEEANZER
assets recognised and movements thereon during the FEREMB(BEE)EEARHEE
current and prior years: g :
Undistributable
profits of
associates
and joint
ventures Others Total
BENTR
RERALZ
RA KR Hith o
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FBT FHET FAT
At 1st April, 2014 RZZE-MEMA—A (1,857) 807 (1,050)
Exchange adjustment RS - (1) (1)
(Credit) charge to profit or loss RERGIA) 1k 102 (500) (398)
At 31st March, 2015 RZE-A%¥=HA=1+—H (1,755) 306 (1,449)
Exchange adjustment R % - (13) (13)
Charge to profit or loss REEZ MR (182) (179) (361)
At 31st March, 2016 R_E—REF=R=1—H (1,937) 114 (1,823)
Note: Others mainly represent deferred tax assets for accrued rental K B rEEEAHSES 2BEEMREBER
expenses. Fﬁa °
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)
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016

BE_FT—NF=ZHA=+—HIFE
22. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 22, EEHIE (&)
At 31st March, 2016, the Group had unutilised tax RZE—RE=ZH=+—8 ' &&
losses of HK$167,466,000 (2015: HK$136,596,000) = ¥ 5 AN B A T 75 548 167,466,000
available to set off against future assessable profits. No B(ZF — A F :136,596,0008
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of ORISR R ER TR F] o R
these unutilised tax losses due to the unpredictability IR BE TEORI R 21 i B AR - B & mE a4
of future profit stream. Included in unutilised tax losses LXREHH ﬁﬁ‘k}% BERELERIEE
at 31st March, 2016 are losses of HK$109,038,000 E-NZTE—RE=ZA=+—Hz2ZX
(2015: HK$85,654,000) that will expire in the period HEGREEESEER_E—+tF%
from 2017 to 2021 (2015: 2016 to 2020). Other losses ZE—F(ZE—RF: ZF—RX
of the Group at 31st March, 2015 and 2016 may be FEE-_ZE-_ZE )HEERZER
carried forward indefinitely. #7109,038,0008 ;L(ZF — f1 & -
85,654,000/ L) c REBR _Z
—RAFER_ZE-R"FZA=+—HB2Z
Hh B 18 Al B[R HA 45
Under the law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed BERREELE B2 N\F—H—
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned Bt - REENERRTEIRE B FTH
by the PRC subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008 Bad s REBZMNEHT - AR
onwards. Deferred tax has not been provided for in 7N 2 (B AT 4o | 3¢ o] R BB B A B 25t
the consolidated financial statements in respect of i Al FE {6 & B 2= %8 46,810,000 7% 7T
temporary differences attributable to accumulated (ZZ—FHF : 79,264,000 7T) Z B
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to o ANERE5r e e a &
HK$46,810,000 (2015: HK$79,264,000) as the REEE - WA BN B RAR T
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of R Z=ZBE IR T I8 2 Bl -
the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. [R&
Number
of shares Amount
BB E -}
HK$’000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each &MXE{EO0.10/8 T2
Authorised: Pz
At 1st April, 2014, 31st March, \:E mimﬂ—
2015 and 31st March, 2016 B —hF=H
=+— E&
—E—XRF=H
=+—H 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRER
At 1st April, 2014, 31st March, Eé:g mim%—
2015 and 31st March, 2016 H - —hF=H
=+ EI
;k=—ZF—7RF=H
=+—H 570,610,224 57,061
RAEKRITEBEFR LD T Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E-—ANF=ZF=F+—HILFE

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 24, IR AEREBZARRS
(a) 2003 Share Option Scheme (a) =Z=ZT=FERETE

REAATIR-SE=F+— A

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the

Company’s special general meeting held on 3rd
November, 2003, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”).
The 2003 Share Option Scheme was valid for a
period of ten years commencing on the adoption
date on 3rd November, 2003.

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, options
may be granted to any director, employee,
consultant, customer, supplier or advisor of the
Group or a company in which the Company holds
an interest or a subsidiary of such company,
the trustee of the eligible persons or a company
beneficially owned by the eligible persons. The
purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme
is to attract and retain quality personnel and
other persons to provide incentive to them to
contribute to the business and operation of the
Group. No eligible persons shall be granted an
option in any 12-month period for such number
of shares (issued and to be issued) which in
aggregate would exceed 1% of the share capital
of the Company in issue on the last day of
such 12-month period unless approval of the
shareholders of the Company has been obtained
in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
exercisable period is determined by the directors
of the Company, which shall not be more than
ten years from the date of grant, and may include
a minimum period for which the options must be
held before it can be exercised. The exercise price
per share payable on the exercise of an option
equals to the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of one share;
(b) the closing price per share as stated in the

Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant; and

ZRBTZERENIAS LAB
ZEBRER  NRARIRABER
BAE( T =FERE
2l o —TE=FBERETER
KRB —_ZTZT=F+—H=H
REETBARTEF -

BE_TST=FERETE - B
BIEAIRTFAEESARRAREE
R 2 ARk Z AR ZHBA R
ZEMEE  EE - BH &
F - #EEKZAA  8EBA
ITZEXAREBERALES R
BZRAR - —ET = FHERE
EEERSI RBEBESAT RE
AL AREFEEHAER
EBREEEL TR - BB LT
RA - BRIEE BB AR R ARE
o BRREM+ @A BHE
N ABRATTEERT SR
K& B (BTG TET)E
HBBA R BN+ =@ A HE
ZRE—BZEHEITRA1%Z
BARE - THEHEARRESE
E o ETEBBEE L AR
+F - B EEBRETFERTS
BREEZREHR - EITEER
RN 2 SRITEBAESRIA
T=&Fz2&R

(@) —HAinE®E
b) WHORNRLEBEBRM

BHBERMAB 2 ZFRK
mE &
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BE-—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 24, IR AEBZ2NARRZ (#)

(Continued)
(a) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) —ES=FERETE(Z)

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted ) BOHREERLERRNR
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations (BN =Ry ESH =
sheet for the five business days immediately BRI EBRFHKT
preceding the date of grant. g o

On 6th April, 2011, 32,300,000 share options were RZZE——F@™ANHE"

granted and on 29th August, 2011, 23,000,000 32,300,000 g Ik EE & I -

share options were granted under the 2003 Share mMR—_E——F N \A=+ThIB -

Option Scheme. The options may be exercised 23,000,000 BERRERIE = F

by the grantees at any time during the option ToFHEREREERD - &K

period up to the termination of employment. All A A] P B AR ER P RE R 7T (R BB AR

share options vested immediately at the date of ¥ BEERIEERAILL - FTERE
grant. The estimated fair values of the options RERKEHE BENREB - RNiZ
granted on these dates are HK$44,855,000 ZHHEERL 2EREZ BT
and HK$48,698,000, respectively. The closing 1B 9 Rl & 44,855,000 T &
prices immediately before the date of grant were 48,698,000/ L EEE M &
HK$3.95 and HK$4.38, respectively. BRIZWHED A A3.95/8 T
N 4.3887T °

Details of specific categories of options are as BEBRERR ZFABET :

follows:

Number of Original Adjusted
share exercise exercise
options price price per

Date of grant granted Exercisable period per share share

EREERE REER RARER

REAH A AaoEeE TEE TEE

6th April, 2011 32,300,000 6th April, 2011 to HK$4.13 HK$3.44

—ZET——FWmAKRH (note @)  5th April, 2021 413% 7T 3.44% T

(Kfita) —E——FHANBE (note i)

—ET-—FMARA (Biati)

29th August, 2011 23,000,000 29th August, 2011 to HK$4.80 N/A
—T——F\HZThH 28th August, 2021 4.8078 7T TE A

~E——%\A-thBE
2= —%/\A=t/B
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24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 24, UIRDAEBZNARRZ (#)

(Continued)
(a) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) —SE=FHEREE(ZE)
The following tables disclose movements of the TREBERBEE-_T—HEK—
Company’s share options granted under the E-ARE=ZA=Z+—HIFERN
2003 Share Option Scheme held by directors, 5% REENEREEZBEC=
employees and consultants during the years ST =-FEREGIEREZAR
ended 31st March, 2015 and 2016: NRIEBRELE
Share options granted on 6th April, 2011 R-EFE——FNANARLHZIE
BRE

Number of

shares

under option

outstanding at

1st April, 2014,

31st March,

2015 and

31st March,

2016

R=-F—N0NF

MA—H -

—E—-A1F

=A=+—H

R-—ZE—XREF

=A=+—H

RITHE

BRESRZ

Categories of participants 2 EEE R BRHEEE

Directors of the Company RARIES 14,520,000

Other employees Hivfg 8 14,400,000

Consultants (note ii) BRI (BT aLii) 2,640,000

Total HBEt 31,560,000
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24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 24, IR AEBZ2NARRZ (#)

(Continued)
(a) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) —SE=FERETE(E)
Share options granted on 29th August, 2011 R-E——FNA=-F+IARH
ZHERE
Number of
shares
under option
outstanding at
1st April, 2014,
31st March,
2015 and
31st March,
2016
R-Z-—F
A—A8-
—E-A1F
=Z=A=t+—*H
R-B-—X%F
=A=+—H
RITEZ
BREMRY R
Categories of participants SHEEER 2R EE
Other employees HifEE 18,000,000
Consultants (note ii) BARS (B aLii) 5,000,000
Total 5t 23,000,000
Notes: V oz
(i) The number of shares under the outstanding options and () RITEBERESEZBROHEE R
the exercise price have been adjusted upon the bonus THEEER=-_ZE——FtARE
issue of shares in July 2011 on the basis of one new HERARTBEIRER —RHTTE
ordinary share for every five ordinary shares held. f& 7 EERFAT IR B EHFAEE o
(i) The share options were granted to consultants for (ii) BERRRETVR TR (ERE AN
services rendered in exploring investment opportunities EERIERERSTIEERB 2
for the Group. EE
The 2003 Share Option Scheme expired on 2nd —EE=FERETERN
November, 2013. The options could be exercised —=F+—A_-HEm - BpxiE
by the participants at any time during the option A fy 2% B2 2 A BE % A HE RS (] B
period and notwithstanding that the 2003 Share BTUATE  MAm_EE=F
Option Scheme had expired. BRRESTEIE Em o
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24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

24. LR ARER AR Z (7)

(b) 2013 Share Option Scheme (b) —E—=FERETE

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on
13th August, 2013, a new share option scheme
was adopted with effect on 3rd November, 2013
(the “2013 Share Option Scheme”) after the expiry
of the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

Under the 2013 Share Option Scheme, options
may be granted to (i) any director, employee
or consultant of the Group or a company in
which the Company holds an equity interest or a
subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”); or (i) any
discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
include any director, employee or consultant
of the Group or an Affiliate; or (ii) a company
beneficially owned by any director, employee or
consultant of the Group or an Affiliate; or (iv) any
customer, supplier or adviser whose service to
the Group or business with the Group contributes
or is expected to contribute to the business or
operation of the Group. The purpose of the 2013
Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
quality personnel and other persons to provide
incentive to them to contribute to the business
and operation of the Group. The total number of
shares available for issue under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme as at the date of this report is
57,061,022 shares. No eligible persons shall be
granted an option in any 12-month period for
such number of shares (issued and to be issued)
which in aggregate would exceed 1% of the
share capital of the Company in issue on the last
day of such 12-month period unless approval
of the shareholders of the Company has been
obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
exercisable period is determined by the directors
of the Company, which shall not be more than
ten years from the date of grant, and may include
a minimum period for which the options must be

BREARRR=_T—=F/\A
T=—B8ETZRRABFAE LA
BERRBRR N_TT=F
BRI EERE  —BR =%
—=F+—AZBERZFER
BitE(( 2 —=FBREs
2 ) ERM -

BIE—_T—=FERES -
BRERT R T () AR EH AR A
RERAERZ Z REIHZARZ
MEBAR(HB AR ZEM
BEE -EEHEM H(i)Xxn
ABEARE BB A R 2 M
5% EEREMIAE2ESE
L (i B ASE B QA
ZAMES EEXNBEHERH
B2 F(v)AREESAK
S 2 X5 AR i sk TR AR ¥ AR
EECEBIALEELERZ
FREPF - fEmmEER - —F
— = FREREEIE TR k%
BEFZSAT REMAL - L
BEHREE 2 EBREEED
Bl RARERH  —T—=
FHERERTEIE T HEBEIT 2R
5 48 8 557,061,022 (% » 1R &
LR - BRIFEERAFR
B - T RIAMER+ =@ A &
HA - AERALTTISERTS
RRHEE (B %817 TET)
HBHBBARNTRZTZEA E
Mz&E—BZEBITRA1%
ZIBRRRE - ITHEHTI R A ARE
EET  FETSHBBEERT A
BETF - BRI BIEBRETE
AIWBRER < &R EIRR o 171
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016

BE—F

—NE=ZHF=+—HIFE

24, SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

(b)

2013 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

held before it can be exercised. The exercise price
per share payable on the exercise of an option
equals to the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of one share;

(b) the closing price per share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant; and

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

The 2013 Share Option Scheme will remain in
force until 2nd November, 2023.

No option was granted, exercised or lapsed under
the 2013 Share Option Scheme since its effective
date on 3rd November, 2013 and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31st March, 2016.

No share-based payment expense was recognised for
the years ended 31st March, 2015 and 2016 in relation
to share options granted by the Company.

RAERTHE

[E & BR 2 & Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

24. LR RERZARRZ (B)

(b) —B—=FBEREFE(E)

BREREN ZEBRITEERS
RUAT=FR2RHE :

(@) —RXAXIPEIE

b) BHRKEEE BEBIAT
BEBRERABTZHERK
mE: &

() PTREEREEHA R
15%HEW“%tEﬁ
BRABRZERFHKT

—E-CEBREsES—EA
M BEE_T_=F+—AZ
H o

BEAMHBA_ZT—=F+—A4
PR MEBRERE_-ZT
—=FBREFIERY - 176
KA MR _ZTE—X~F=HAH
=T+ BIVERITEREARE -

BE_T-—AFN_FT-RE=H
=+—HILFE " Tﬁ%ﬂﬁvtzliﬂ_??fﬁtﬂ
Z BB RERE R AR A AR BT 2 (< 5K B
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

25.

26.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March, 2016, the Group issued financial
guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities
granted to associates. The aggregate amount that
could be required to be paid if the guarantees were
called upon in entirety amounted to NT$200,000,000
(equivalent to HK$47,600,000; 2015: NT$200,000,000
and equivalent to HK$49,599,000), which was fully
utilised by these associates at 31st March, 2016.
The fair value of the financial guarantee contracts at
the grant date and at 31st March, 2015 and 2016 is
not significant and in the opinion of the directors, the
default risk of associates is considered as low.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

Within one year —FNA

In the second to fifth years EFE_EZFRF
inclusive (BREEREMF)

Over five years fBiE A F

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain its shops and office premises.
Leases are negotiated for an average term of 1 to
8 years (2015: 1 to 9 years). Some group entities
are required to pay lease charges based on a fixed
percentage of net sales.

25.

26.

HREE

R-_E-—RF=ZA=+—H" &&
EpME AR ERZRITBMER
RITBELEMBER RZF— KX

REERBUGREEATIN AR
¥ & %200,000,0007C(#H %
47,600,000 t: — T — A F:
¥ & ¥ 200,000,000 7T © I #H F R
49,599,000 8T ) EEZ FH & A A
2HHA UBEREGARELE
Ak E—RAFR_FT—F=H
Zt—HZAFEIFTEK EFR
R BB RRCHEREREN

REHERS

X

RBERR - NEBE A BERRIE
AAGE 2 R EHE XN REHEER
B BB

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
230,390 158,912
218,670 208,466
68,683 69,507
517,743 436,885

REHERREAEBEREET O/
ERREYERRNz2EE - ZEHE
ZHEFRR/IEBF(ZE—RF -
129%F) ETREERARHEETF
BMZBEBEALNHEHEER -
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27.

28.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure in respect MERE M BBRERA

of the acquisition of property, EEEMNEE T
plant and equipment IWREM S - a3
contracted for but not provided BEZEARY

in the consolidated financial
statements

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group principally operates defined contribution
retirement schemes for all qualifying employees,
including directors. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of independent trustees.

The retirement scheme cost represents contributions
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in
the rules of the schemes. Where there are employees
who leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in a defined
contribution schemes, of which one scheme is
registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (the “ORSO” Scheme) and the other is
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF”
Scheme) established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of independent
trustees.
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(Continued)

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at rates ranging
from 5% to 15% of the employee’s basic salary,
depending on the length of service with the Group.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme subject to a maximum monthly contribution
amount of HK$1,500 (HK$1,250 before 1st June, 2014)
to an individual, which contribution is matched by the
employee.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of
HK$6,830,000 (2015: HK$9,396,000) represents
contributions payable to these schemes by the Group
in respect of the current accounting period.

28. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 28.

RIRBERET S (2

ORSOGTEINEERAKEIEH 2 &
AHFREES  #ALXAREER
HZ25%FE15% RTRAEEZ AR
EEHME o

ERBESFEIZKE - AEE MR
Bert BB EHEK AR S5%ET
EoHE mENEEEL 2T AH
HE&EZ1,5008 T (ZE—WFNA
—HBAI1,250%7T) - M{ES IMEH

ARBTEMBARZIEEHZ2EA
PERFEE 2 BZERENE S -
ARBZHBEAMBARAREESF S
ZET B tERARENG B
MNRzEEMERES - ARERA
RIBFTEMELREHR - BIERTE
REEFETEI BT -

B8z Mk Z /K 7 6,830,000 78 7T
(ZZ— A4 : 9,396,000 7T ) #§ A<
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29.

30.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchange from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank loans disclosed in note 21 net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves including retained profits. The
directors of the Company review the capital structure
on an annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as issue of new debts or
redemption of existing debts.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

29.

30.

Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables B K YRR
(including cash and cash (BERekERES
equivalents) HE)
Available-for-sale financial AHHESRERE
assets
Financial liabilities TRBE
Amortised cost [mE: 5D

RAKRTEEBRAD A Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. €T A(#)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale financial assets, amount due from
a joint venture, trade and other receivables, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables and
bank loans. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure that appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

The Group has limited currency exposure as the
majority of the sales were denominated in functional
currency of the relevant group entities. The
management conducts periodical review of exposure
and requirements of various currencies, and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposures
should the need arise. The management considers that
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is not
significant.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank loans and bank balances.
The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
The fair value interest rate risk on bank deposits is
insignificant as the fixed deposits are short-term.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR and the
People’s Bank of China benchmark interest rate arising
from the Group’s bank loans.

MBEREEEEREE

AEBFTESRMIABFENHLEE
TRMEE -  BUKEELARIKE B
NEMBEUERER  SRITEHRKIBRS -
B NEMEMBERALIRITER
ZEeRITAFBERNSEHENTRH
EoHZESmIERBZARBRE
MRk (8RR - 5 =@k & HE
mEXRRR) EFERREABES
BBz o NXET A FRIEZEFRER 2
BR BEEEENMERZERE
R MEMAE B REEE 28
I o

%5 E B
E%EE

HRARNHEIANRREEER
DEREE  BAKEZEERER
BIR - BEEBEEHRNSEER
Rk Kk FEK  UHEEREREEY
HERINERER - EEER R ANEHE
ZINERBRE A e

AEBAZARTEERITERRIRT
BHEIIBSRENERR - AEER
Ry 3 B R R SRR - AT BIEE
ERNXER YHEBETERHEZRE
BN XRER - AN ERFRB
REFR - RITIERZ A FER X
BB T A e
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank loans
at the end of the reporting period. The analyses are
prepared assuming that the bank loans outstanding at
the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points (2015: 50 basis points)
increase or decrease is used for bank loans when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

For bank loans, if interest rates had been 50 basis
points (2015: 50 basis points) higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s post
tax loss for the year ended 31st March, 2016 would
increase/decrease by HK$1,083,000 (2015: post tax
profit would decrease/increase by HK$1,688,000).

For bank deposits, no sensitive analysis is performed
as the exposure to interest rates for bank deposits is
considered as insignificant.

Other price risk

The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets at
the end of the reporting period exposed the Group
to equity price risk. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk profiles. In view of the amount of
available-for-sale financial assets at the end of the
reporting period, the management considers that the
Group’s exposure to equity price risk is not significant.
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. €T A(#)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and
financial guarantees provided by the Group is arising
from:

° the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position; and

e the amount of contingent liabilities in relation
to financial guarantee issued by the Group as
disclosed in note 25.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit standings and banks
with good reputation.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables consist
of a large number of counterparties and customers.
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31st March, 2016, the Group
has available unutilised short-term bank loan facilities
of HK$1,066,357,000 (2015: HK$909,637,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. The amounts included below for variable
interest rate bank loans are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ from those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.
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30. E@ T B (&)
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

30. IR (#)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
HETH
1503

2016 ZE-RE

Non-derivative financial 7% 2RERE

liabilities

Trade and other payables ~ ZRREMENER  NATER

Bank loans &R 1.96% ~ 6.90%
(note)(H2)

Financial quarantee contracts  SIBERAL NATEH

2015 Z§-1f

Non-derivative financial 7% 2RER

liabilities

Trade and other payables ~ BRRELERER  NATER

Bank loans Lt 2.06% — 7.2%
(note) (42

Financial quarantee contracts B ERAL) NATEE

BHEREEBEREE(E)

mEBELEE(E)

RBE D R ERE R

On demand Total
or less than 1tod  3months 1to5 undiscounted  Carrying
1 month months to 1 year years  cash flows amount

RERY FERRE
YMER 123ER  3fERE1E 1858 fiE#E KEf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKk$ 000
TET AT AT AT TET TET
115,138 5,450 1,122 - 128,310 128,310
23,033 o7,013 78,798 61,281 20,125 216,638
138,171 62,463 86,520 61,281 348,435 344,948
47,600 - - - 47,600 -
100,054 4417 8,641 - 113,072 113,072
27,580 76,699 136,360 110,017 350,656 337,514
127,634 81,176 144,901 110,017 463,728 450,586
49,599 - - - 49,599 -

Note: The management made the best estimation of variable-rate
borrowings with reference to HIBOR and the People’s Bank of

China benchmark rate as at 31st March, 2016 and 2015.

Kt ERESER-F-AFR-F-IF
ZA=+—RZEBRITAERERF
BARBIEENEEHTBHEE L&
o
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B 5 S AR M R

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers
that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of
the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is
a function of the likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 month” time
band in the above maturity analyses. As at 31st March,
2016, the aggregate undiscounted principal amount
of the bank loan with a repayment on demand clause
amounted to HK$17,667,000 (2015: HK$21,667,000).
Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe
that the bank loans will be repaid in six years (2015:
seven years) after the reporting date in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreement. At that time, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows will amount to HK$23,033,000
(2015: HK$27,579,000).
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. R T B (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies ERREEEERBEKR(Z)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELEE(E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued) BB RFFRE 7% (&)
Weighted
average Total
effective 1t03 3 months to 1to5  More than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate months 1 year years 5years  cash flows amount
EYH FERRE

ERAE  1E3ER SBAEME 125F SENE REHE KAE
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HK$000
T T Tt T T T

2016 ZE3-5F
Bank loans L 2.29% 1,122 3,333 16,902 1,676 23,033 17,667
Weighted
average Total
effective 1t03 3 months to 1to5  More than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate months 1 year years 5years  cash flows amount
it 35 FERRS
EmfE  1Z3BR  SEREIE 1258 SENL HEAE ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT AT AT AT AT
2015 “%-1f
Bank loans i 2.29% 1,145 3,401 17,269 5,765 27,580 21,667
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets are determined.

30. TR IR (#)

REEMERENUATFEFAEZEAER

THEEZLVE

REBBKR  AEELDEREETS
ARFERE - TRE‘RARNME

EHFEREEZR

Fair value  Valuation techniques Significant

Financial assets Fair value hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable inputs
HERTR EXTTER
SHEE AV AVERE IEZBAYE BANE
2016 2015
S3-AEF it
HK$'000 HK$'000
7 AT
(i) Available-for-sale financial 93 9 Level 1 Quoted bid pricesin ~ N/A
assets — listed an active market

investments, equity
securities listed in

Hong Kong

() TELEERARE - 218 ERTEMECEAE  TEA
FiRE  REE LD
LR

(iiy Available-for-sale financial 5,432 5,003 Level 2 Quoted market prices ~ N/A
assets — unlisted provided by brokers
investments, managed which are financial
fund portfolio institutions (Note)

(i) AL ESREE - 228 ERBENSRRERE TER
FLTRE  ERES LT REMW:L)
RE@R

Note: Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are financial
institutions represent the net asset values of the respective
funds, based on the quoted prices of the underlying
investments.
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. €M T R(#&)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that BEREMBEEUAFEFEZEREE
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis EtRMEEZATFEE)
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period: REMEKR 7 AT (HL0H

2016
-
Level 1 Level 2 Total

%140 #2408 ZL
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET F87 FE 7

Available-for-sale financial At HESREE

assets
Listed equity securities TR AR 93 - 93
Managed fund portfolio EERSKELS - 5,432 5,432
93 5,432 5,525
2015
—T—hF
Level 1 Level 2 Total
F1MR F2/ BEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Available-for-sale financial At HESREE
assets
Listed equity securities EHRAFE S 99 - 99
Managed fund portfolio ERESKEMRSE — 5,553 5, 55
99 5,553 5,652
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of EEARAANEE SRR P IRE K
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at ARz e EERSRABEZER
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements BEHEANTEHREE °

approximate to their fair values.
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31. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 31. T ERBE AT
RZE—RNRFR-_ZE—HF=H
=+—B KARZEFEWBAF
(2 ABRAR)FIBET :

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of
which are limited liability companies, at 31st March,
2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Issued and fully paid Proportion of
operations share capital/registered nominal value of issued capital/ Principal
Name of subsidiary AR/ and paid-up capital registered capital held by the Company activities
WEARER Bo/BEny  CRORARKRA/FRREAER KDAMKEZERTRATE/ ERERZ LA TERE
2015 Directly Indlrectly
E-1f 2 4 %
2016 2015 2016 2015
G CT-TF Lyl 1%
% % % %
La Suisse Watch Company, ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ Ordinary shares 100 100 - — Watch trading
Limited HK$1,000 HKS$1,000
RTR{TERAR Ek EER1,000%T  EERI000%T FREY
Qriental Watch (China) Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Watch trading and
Company Limited HK$1,000 HK$1,000 investment
holding
FARA(PR)ERRA  BA EER1,0008%  EER1000ET FREERRERR
Qrigntal Watch Company Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Ordinary shares 100 100 - —  Watch trading
Limited HK$1,000 HKS$1,000
FARAARAT Bk EER1000BL  EER1000ET FREH
Qriental Watch (Macau| Macau Ordinary shares  Ordinary shares 50 50 50 50  Watch trading
Company Limited MOP$25,000 MOP$25,000
Fhxn(AM)ARAT B EER LAk FREH
25,0002 7 25,000 2570
Sharp Beauty Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share Ordinary share - - 100 100 Investment holding
HKS$1 HKS1
ERERAT B EER1ER ERR1ET REZR
Unex Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary share Ordlinary Share - - 100 100 Property Holding
HK$2 HK$?
FUERARAT Bk EER2ER koA LS
FERRRAAEESERAR The PRC (otg)  Registered and  Registered and - = 100 100 Watch trading for a
(Shanghai Oriental Watch % EI(#7) paid-up capital paid-up capital term of 50 years
International Trading Co., U$5200,000 1S$200,000 commencing 3rd
Ltd) iftkedEs  ERRCGER January, 2001
200,000 7 200,000%70 FREE BOTX

RAKRTEEBRAD A Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS SRR Y &

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

31. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Issued and fully paid
operations share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary HRL/ and paid-up capital
KEARER BR/Beny  CRORARRA/HRREEER
2016 2015
=% _/Aii :z‘_ﬁ¢
EnE(pE)ESERAT ThePRC (o)  Registered and  Registered and
(Oriental Watch (China) & (%7 paid-up capital  paid-up capital
Trading Co., Ltd.) US$54,000,000  US$54,000,000
iftkedEs  FRREEER
54,000,000 54,000,000%7
B%(15)855R0%  ThePRC(notg) Registeredand  Registered and
REH) paid-up capital  paic-up capital
1$$9,180,000 1S$9,180,000
EUGE - S G v
9,180,000 %7 9,180,000

Note: These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
wholly foreign-owned enterprise.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year, or at any time
during the year.

31. FEMBE AT (&)

Proportion of
nominal value of issued capital/ Principal
registered capital held by the Company activities

KA ZERTRATE/ RRER2 LA TE5R

Directly Indlrectly

EF 73
2015 2015
ZE-1f ZE-nf
% %

- = 100 100 Wateh trading for a
term of 30 years
commencing
14th June, 200

FREE H-%%
LERATHRA
Bir30E

- = 100 100 Watch trading
FRiEH

Hiet % E R
PX3Z

ARFEAEIELE 2R

ERREIEERASEIEXELKH
REREEZARANEBAR - EF
s % IEFNE KB AR 2w E
AlggyEMBOHITE -

S0 B A ARERRE PRI
AR RES S -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HIFE

31. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group.
A majority of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong,
the PRC and Taiwan. The principal activities of these
subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activity

FEXK FEXBHE
Watch trading Hong Kong
FREH iy

Taiwan

4
Investment holding Hong Kong
REER BB

The PRC

H [
Inactive Hong Kong
Tmex BB

The PRC

R

136 R A &ITEBEABR D T Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

31. TEMBAR (@)

REHMBR - NAFAHAEETS
WIBEBRZEMMERR - KEED %

EWMBRARINERE  FEK

=)

2 g 4

/= MWL

%o HEHBATY TEEBEMN

T

Principal place of business

Number of subsidiaries

MEARHE

2016 2015
b SVl T HF
1 1

1 1

2 2

9 9

1 1
10 10
16 16
1 1
17 17
29 29




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE—E—ANF=ZF=1+—HILFE

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In April 2012, the Group entered into a
procurement agreement with Hei Tung, pursuant
to which the Group provides procurement services
to Hei Tung relating to the supply of watches and
spare parts for no consideration. The procurement
agreement is effective from 1st April, 2012. At
31st March, 2016, reimbursements receivable
from Hei Tung amounted to HK$5,185,000 (2015:
HK$2,637,000).

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The key management personnel are the directors
of the Company. The remuneration of directors
during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits 52 HAtE A
Post-employment benefits B 2127

The remuneration of directors is determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

32. FREALRS

(a)

RZE——_FA AEBHEE
R VRERE - Bt - AEE
EERAZERREHEEEERTS
e 2 KBRS - KB =
—TE-_FWHA—HEBEK-
R—ZZE—XF=ZR=+—8"
FEUE 2 R 3K 55,185,000 7%
7T(=ZZF — A F : 2,637,000
JT) °

(b) EEEBEEBABZHRM
TEEEREABRARAIES -
FRAZEZMSOT

2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—HF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FEL
14,113 16,215
1,581 1,834
15,694 18,049
E=MeHE M = &R

ZEEK
AKB RN HBEREE -

—Z — X F F 3, Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  33. &2 8 B &k R =

THE COMPANY

2016 2015
—E-RF —T-hF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - W LG 867 1,084
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR Z®E 122,626 122,626
Available-for-sale financial assets At HESREE 3,203 3,295
126,696 127,005

Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN ENGIE 855,278 844,611
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 568 568
855,846 845,179
Current liabilities REAE

Other payables H A ER RN 1,240 1,491
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NGIE S 89,121 86,676
90,361 88,167
Net current assets REBEEFE 765,485 757,012
Net assets EEFRE 892,181 884,017

Capital and reserves BEAXRFEE
Share capital N 57,061 57,061
Reserves (note) FE(Ha) 835,120 826,956
Total equity A 892,181 884,017

ARBZHBHRERECESTEN_-F
—RNERNRAZT=ZAHAEREET
%o WA MIESEHARE

The Company financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23rd
June, 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Yeung Ming Biu Yeung Him Kit, Dennis

LR BOTH
CHAIRMAN DEPUTY CHAIRMAN AND
MANAGING DIRECTOR
e B [ERE FARAEIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016
BE-E—ANF=ZF=+—HILFE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 33. &AXA BB RER (&)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: Bist -
Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and the RATRBRNEERBEEE 2 #FHNT ¢
prior year are as follows:
HK$’000
FAET
At 1st April, 2014 MN-—Z—pEmA—A 812,018
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial At HELREE 2 A FEES
assets 410
Profit for the year & R F 18,807
Dividends paid B E (4,279)
At 31st March, 2015 R-_FE—RAF=A=+—H 826,956
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial At ELREE 2 A FEES
assets (92)
Profit for the year F W Al 10,252
Dividends paid BEfIRE (1,996)
At 31st March, 2016 RZE—R"F=A=+—H 835,120
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MERE
Year ended 31st March,
BZE=A=+t—HLEFE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—E——F —ZT—= —E-NFE —T—AF =
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
RESULTS &
Turnover &R 3,935,963 3,732,925 3,476,513 3,109,031 3,031,752
Profit (loss) before &% Al % 7
taxation (&E) 216,937 185,963 29,964 9,650 (12,717)
Income tax FTiSfif
expense (52,829) (23,366) (9,516) (5,317) (3,042)
Profit (loss) for the £ A%l (E518)
year 164,108 162,597 20,448 4,333 (15,759)
Attributable to: AN ALFEG -
Owners of the ViN/NETEZ Z =N
Company 164,108 162,597 20,605 4,508 (15,528)
Non-controlling FEFE AR 2
interests — — (157) (175) (231)
Profit (loss) for the A% F| (&)
year 164,108 162,597 20,448 4,333 (15,759)
At 31st March,
R=A=+—H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

—E——F —T—=F —T-NUF —T—HF L
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’°000
FETT FET FET FET FET

ASSETS AND EEREE

LIABILITIES
Total assets BEHE 2,803,939 3,082,092 2,859,107 2,706,073 2,533,582
Total liabilities BEEE (711,711)  (854,142)  (641,092) (494,282) (376,010)

2,092,228 2,227,950 2,218,015 2,211,791 2,157,672

Equity attributable ZAAGHEAE A
to owners of the  FE{E#EZS

Company 2,092,228 2,227,950 2,216,462 2,210,452 2,156,518
Non-controlling FEIE RS
interests — — 1,553 1,339 1,054

2,002,228 2,227,950 2,218,015 2,211,791 2,157,572
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